
 
 

VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST REGULAR 
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Monday, March 13, 2017 – 7:00 PM 
Village Hall – 400 Park Avenue – River Forest, IL 60305 

Community Room 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Call to Order/ Roll Call 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Citizen Comments 
 

4. Elected Official Comments and Announcements 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
a. Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes – February 27, 2017 
b. Executive Session Meeting Minutes – February 27, 2017 
c. Designation of Jonathan Pape as Alternate Representative for IRMA 
d. Approval of Village Attorney Invoice for January 2017 - $16,282.94 
e. Waive Formal Bid Procedures and Award Purchase for Microsoft Software Licensing to CDW-G for 

$27,477.48 
f. Award Bid and Award Contract for the 2017 Tree & Stump Removal Program to Homer Tree Care, 

Inc. for $35,304 
g. Award Bid and Award Contract for 2017 Tree Trimming Program to Davis Tree Care & 

Landscaping, Inc. for $34,722 
h. Amend Title 9 of the Village Code – ADA Parking Space Request at 11 Ashland Avenue – Ordinance 
i. Authorize the Execution of a Grant of Storm Water Easement for St. Vincent Ferrer Church  (1530 

Jackson Avenue) 
j. Monthly Department Reports 
k. Monthly Performance Measurement Report 
l. Village Administrator’s Report 

 
6. Board, Committee and Commission Reports 

 
7. Unfinished Business 

a. Amend Title 3 of the Village Code Regarding Conflicts with Certain Home Rule County Ordinances 
(Cook County Minimum Wage and Paid Sick Leave Ordinances) – Ordinance  

b. Waive Formal Bidding Procedures and Authorize Agreement for Consulting Services with Ehlers and 
Associates for the Redevelopment of Lake Street and Park Avenue Project 

c. Authorize participation in the WSCDC Joint Emergency Telephone Systems Board and authorize 
dissolution of the River Forest Emergency Telephone Systems Board – Ordinance  

 
8. New Business 

 
9. Executive Session 

 
10. Adjournment 



VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES 

February 27, 2017 
 

A regular meeting of the Village of River Forest Board of Trustees was held on Monday, 
February 27, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. in the Community Room of Village Hall, 400 Park Avenue, 
River Forest, IL. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m.  Upon roll call, the following persons were: 
 
Present:   President Adduci, Trustees Conti, Corsini, Cargie, Dwyer, and Gibbs  
Absent:    Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Also Present:  Village Clerk Sharon Halperin, Assistant Village Administrator Lisa Scheiner,  

Police Chief Greg Weiss, Fire Chief Jim Eggert, Finance Director Joan Rock, 
Assistant Finance Director Cheryl Scott, Public Works Director John Anderson, 
Village Attorney Greg Smith 

                        
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President Adduci led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  
 
4. ELECTED OFFICIALS COMMENTS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 
 
Trustee Dwyer stated that his wife wanted to pass along her thanks to Chief Weiss for his 
donation of a ride to school from the police to the PTO fundraiser.  
 
Trustee Corsini stated that she, Clerk Halperin, and Assistant Village Administrator Scheiner 
attended the annual West Central Municipal Conference (WCMC) Legislative Breakfast on 
Saturday, February 18.  She said the legislative agenda contains some excellent initiatives and 
she hopes that work with this lobbying group will bring about significant legislative changes.  
 
President Adduci thanked the attendees of the WCMC breakfast for representing the Village of 
River Forest.   
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes – February 13, 2017 
b. Award Bid and Contract for William Street Alley to Schroeder Asphalt Services for 

$122,179.85 
c. Declaration of Surplus Property – Recovered Stolen Bicycles – Ordinance  
d. Declaration of Surplus Property – Public Works Chipper Truck – Ordinance   
e. Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Berwyn of Reserve Fire Engine 
f. Monthly Financial Report – January 2017 
g. January 2017 Accounts Payable - $1,503,534.22 
h. Village Administrator’s Report 



  February 27, 2017      
 

2 

 
Trustee Corsini made a motion, seconded by Trustee Dwyer, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Trustee Corsini asked where the new engine would be housed and Fire Chief Eggert confirmed 
that it would be at the River Forest Village Hall. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Conti, Police Chief Weiss stated that the Village has 
donated bikes in the past and plans to do so in the future.  
 
Roll call: 

 
Ayes:    Trustees Gibbs, Corsini, Dwyer, Conti, and Cargie 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:  None 
Motion Passes. 

 
6. RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES 
 

a.  Traffic and Safety – Amend Title 9 of the Village Code – Resident Only Parking on 1000      
block of Jackson Avenue – Ordinance 

 
Trustee Gibbs made a motion to reject the recommendation of the Traffic and Safety 
Commission to approve an Ordinance amending Title 9 of the Village Code establishing 
Resident Parking Only on the 1000 block of Jackson Avenue between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays.  The motion was not seconded. 
 
Trustee Cargie made a motion, seconded by Trustee Conti, to accept the recommendation of the 
Traffic and Safety Commission to approve an Ordinance amending Title 9 of the Village Code 
establishing Resident Parking Only on the 1000 block of Jackson Avenue between the hours of 
8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 
 
Trustee Gibbs discussed his concerns regarding the impact of restricting parking to only 
residents and provided examples of other solutions utilized elsewhere.  He discussed the 
inconsistency of parking restrictions in the area.  He suggested that the restrictions be modified 
to two or three hour parking to prevent students with River Forest vehicle stickers from parking 
in these areas.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Gibbs, Village Administrator Palm noted that staff 
reached out to Concordia who sent a campus-wide email regarding this issue.   
 
Trustee Corsini suggested there was a special event on the days when the numbers were high.  
Ross Fasano of 1009 Jackson stated there are eight to fourteen cars parked on the 1000 block of 
Jackson daily.  Trustee Gibbs concurred that there were many cars parked on that block and 
reiterated his suggestion that parking be restricted to two to three hours.  President Adduci said 
that hourly parking restrictions are more difficult to enforce.  Trustee Gibbs indicated hourly 
parking is adjacent to the area and would not require much more effort.  There was a brief 
discussion about what parking restriction options are available.  
 



  February 27, 2017      
 

3 

Nancy Fasano, 1009 Jackson, stated the Village Engineer provided them with various options 
which were then presented to the neighbors.  She said she does not believe a two hour parking 
restriction would alleviate the parking problem in her neighborhood.  She said she believes 
administrative personnel, and not students, are parking on her block.  In response to a question 
from Trustee Corsini, Ms. Fasano stated she does not believe Concordia’s memo changed 
parking behavior.   
 
Trustee Corsini suggested that whatever restrictions are put in place that they contain an 
exception for holidays.  
 
In response to a statement from Trustee Gibbs, Police Chief Weiss described the parking 
enforcement activities on Thomas.  
 
Trustee Corsini suggested that the Board request the Traffic and Safety Commission consider 
restricting parking on Thomas to one side only and noted that street is very narrow.  Trustee 
Gibbs stated emergency vehicles could have difficulties maneuvering if Concordia students and 
staff begin to park on Thomas.  Trustee Corsini suggested looking at where the parking 
congestion will move to after these restrictions are in place.  Trustee Dwyer proposed that the 
Board add the same restrictions on the 1100 block of Jackson.  Trustee Cargie recommended that 
the Board reach out to residents first before any restrictions are imposed on that street.  
 
Trustee Dwyer requested clarification on whether the parking restrictions cover both sides of the 
street.  Trustee Corsini affirmed the restriction covers both sides of the street.   
 
Roll call: 
 
Ayes:  Trustees Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, Cargie, and Conti 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:  None 
 
Motion Passes. 
 
Trustee Corsini recommended that the Traffic and Safety Committee review the 7500 Block of 
Thomas.  President Adduci concurred.   
 
In response to a question from Trustee Gibbs and Trustee Cargie, Police Chief Weiss stated that 
he is in the process of notifying patrol officers to increase enforcement efforts in the area.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Village Administrator Palm stated that the 
Village will send notification to the residents on the block.  
 
Trustee Gibbs stated that the law of unintended consequences says that the 900 block and 1100 
blocks of Jackson Avenue are likely to be affected by the new restrictions and suggested that 
staff monitor the situation.  President Adduci affirmed that the area will be monitored and 
predicted that residents will complain if this restriction causes problems elsewhere.   
 

b.  Finance – Administration Committee –Waive Formal Bidding and Award Contract to 
BKD, LLP for Professional Auditing Services in the amount of $32,750 

 



  February 27, 2017      
 

4 

Trustee Dwyer made a motion, seconded by Trustee Corsini, to accept the recommendation from 
the Finance Committee and approve an Agreement with BKD, LLP for professional auditing 
services for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2017 with the option of auditing the four subsequent 
fiscal years. 
 
Trustee Corsini reported that the Finance Committee met this evening and recommended 
awarding the contract to BKD.   
 
Finance Director Rock stated she recommended BKD and felt it was the lowest qualified bidder.  
She noted that when BKD took over Wolf and Company in 2014, the auditors added a new 
internal controls questionnaire and used different audit controls and procedures.  She said that 
she believes this provides a fresh look.  She noted that in the past there have been concerns about 
using the same auditors and to address that she requested that they change the partner and the 
staff on the engagement.  She stated BKD is a very qualified firm and provides a lot of added 
services. 
 
President Adduci stated that she has always questioned whether, as fiduciaries of the Village, the 
Village should have a rotation policy in either rotation of the organization, rotation of the 
partner, or both.  She said there are more pros than cons in regard to rotation and most boards 
create a policy.  Trustee Corsini stated this was discussed at the meeting and there is a policy to 
go out for bid every five years.  She said upgrading the policy to include rotation of engagement 
partners was discussed and will be considered at the next meeting.  She noted the Committee was 
comfortable about going forward with BKD.  Trustee Dwyer stated in the rotation of firms there 
are more detrimental effects in the loss of the institutional knowledge.  He noted there are no 
issues they are aware of that would prevent BKD from providing a clean opinion.  He suggested 
reading the article from the Illinois CPA Society (ILCPA) which indicates there is no statistical 
evidence to support the concept of rotation.  In response to a question from Trustee Cargie, Scott 
Termine, partner at BKD, stated there is a sort of Chinese wall between the previous engagement 
partner and the new partner.  Trustee Cargie stated he feels the loss of the institutional 
knowledge is not worth the benefit of fresh eyes from a government standpoint.   
 
In response to a question from Trustee Conti, Finance Director Rock stated Wolf started in 2008 
and prior to that the Village utilized Miller Cooper.  Finance Director Rock noted that BKD is a 
much larger company than Wolf and Company was. 
 
Trustee Conti noted that the Village has the option to renew and is not obligated to continue with 
BKD after four years.  Trustee Corsini stated these are annual engagements and the reason to go 
request proposals every five years is for pricing.  Finance Director Rock noted that it is normal to 
have an extended engagement because there are higher costs in the first year.  In response to a 
question from Trustee Cargie, Finance Director Rock stated staff does an annual engagement 
letter and does not normally go back to the Board every year.   
 
Trustee Corsini stated that of the firms that bid, the lowest bidder did not have as much 
municipal experience and the Village could not expect the same level of service.  She pointed out 
that the Village has received the Illinois Government Finance Officers Association (IGFOA) 
award several times.  Finance Director Rock noted that BKD has a higher level of knowledge 
than other firms.   
 



  February 27, 2017      
 

5 

President Adduci discussed Round Lake’s rotation policy.  Finance Director Rock stated that 
many Villages have been with the same auditing firm for years and she will search for more 
rotation policies prior to the next Finance Committee meeting.   
 
Mr. Termine briefly discussed the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) changes 
and said he hopes to continue to bring new changes to the attention of Village staff.  He stated he 
encourages clients to contact him when situations arise in order to address them as they are 
occurring rather than waiting until audit time.  He said he would be happy to provide articles in 
regard to rotation policies.   
 
Roll call: 
 
Ayes:  Trustees Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, Cargie, and Conti 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:  None 
 
Motion Passes. 
 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Storm Water Facilities Access, Inspection and 
    Repair License Agreement between the Village of River Forest and Concordia University  
    Chicago 

 
Trustee Gibbs made a motion, seconded by Trustee Dwyer, to approve a Resolution authorizing 
the execution of a storm water facilities access, inspection and repair license agreement between the 
Village of River Forest and Concordia University of Chicago.   
 
Village Administrator Palm discussed this history of such agreements.  He noted that the 
involvement of developers of other projects stops once the project has been completed but this is not 
the case with Concordia.  He stated that this agreement will not only allow access to the storm water 
facilities in connection with the new dormitory but to all storm water facilities on the campus.  He 
indicated this agreement will be a template for any new institutional projects in the Village.   
 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Village Attorney Smith stated that the term of the 
agreement is for five years and would be automatically renewed without the need for Village Board 
approval.  Village Administrator Palm stated the Village hopes that there will not be a need to use the 
agreement and noted that it would be used in emergency situations.  He explained that Village 
Engineer Jeff Loster and Public Works Director John Anderson have been working to implement 
best practices such as this agreement.   
 
In response to a question from Trustee Conti, Village Administrator Palm stated that they could 
approach the other educational institutions in River Forest and ask for a similar agreement without a 
pending Planned Development application.  He noted that there are several institutions in the Village 
(schools, churches, etc.) and some of them may not have storm water facilities. He said the planned 
development process provides a natural point to have that conversation but as time allows, staff can 
begin to talk with other institutions.   



  February 27, 2017      
 

6 

 
In response to a question from Trustee Corsini, Village Administrator Palm stated the Village would 
respond to an emergency and would invoice the institution for costs.  Village Attorney Smith added 
that the institution would have sixty days from invoice to reimburse the Village if the Village incurs 
costs in respect to a failure of the institution to maintain storm water facilities.  In response to a 
question from Trustee Corsini, Village Administrator Palm stated the Village could also discover an 
issue with the storm water facilities and the institution could hire their own contractor to address it. In 
response to a follow up question from Trustee Conti, Village Attorney Smith stated the agreement is 
permissive, not mandatory, and it does not transfer the responsibility of maintaining storm water 
facilities to the Village.   
 
Roll call: 
 
Ayes:  Trustees Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, Cargie, Colwell-Steinke, and Conti 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:  None 
 
Motion Passes. 
 

b.  Resolution in support of Federal Legislation requiring Universal Background Checks for 
all gun sales 
 

Trustee Cargie made a motion, seconded by Trustee Conti, to adopt a Resolution in support of 
Federal Legislation requiring Universal Background Checks for all gun sales. 
 
President Adduci discussed the history of this resolution and noted the Board has no legislative 
powers in this regard.   
 
Trustee Cargie said he asked that this be put on the Agenda because 86% of River Forest 
residents voted in favor of the advisory referendum for background checks.  
 
Trustee Dwyer questioned the reasoning of passing a resolution that will have no effect. 
President Adduci noted the Board approves many resolutions that make a statement.  Trustee 
Cargie stated that the advocates for gun background checks would like to use these resolutions to 
show legislators that there is widespread support for background checks.  
 
In response to a question from Trustee Conti, Trustee Cargie stated that there needs to be federal 
legislation for universal background checks and noted that most guns in Illinois come in from 
Indiana.   
 
Trustee Conti said she thinks this is unusual for the Board to do, but she feels the resolution 
makes sense.    
 
Roll call: 
 
Ayes:  Trustees Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, Cargie, and Conti 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:  None 
 



  February 27, 2017      
 

7 

Motion Passes. 
 

9. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 7:57 p.m. Trustee Cargie made a motion seconded by Trustee Gibbs, to recess to Executive 
Session for the purposes of discussing the acquisition of real property, and probable and 
imminent litigation. 
 
Roll call:   
  
Ayes:    Trustees Conti, Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, and Cargie 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke  
Nays:    None 
 
Motion Passes.  
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Trustee Cargie made a motion seconded by Trustee Gibbs, to adjourn the regular Village Board 
of Trustees Meeting at 8:31 p.m.   
 
Roll call:   
  
Ayes:    Trustees Conti, Dwyer, Gibbs, Corsini, and Cargie 
Absent:   Trustee Colwell-Steinke 
Nays:    None 
 
Motion Passes.  
 
 
 
 
    ____________________________________     
   Sharon Halperin, Village Clerk 

 
 



 

 

Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: March 6, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Jonathan Pape, Management Analyst  
 
Subj: Change in IRMA Delegate/Alternate 
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Issue 
 
With the appointment of Jonathan Pape as Management Analyst, it is appropriate to 
officially name him as the Village’s IRMA (Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency) 
alternate representative.  Village Administrator Eric Palm currently serves as the Village’s 
alternate.  Assistant Village Administrator Lisa Scheiner is the Village’s primary IRMA 
Delegate and will continue to reside in this position.  Such appointments are routine and 
require an official resolution adopted by the corporate authorities. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Attached, please find a Resolution appointing Lisa Scheiner as the Village’s IRMA Delegate 
and Jonathan Pape as the alternate representative.  
 
Attachment 
 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE DELEGATE 
TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY (IRMA) 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest adopted the Contract and By-Laws of the 

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency by Ordinance and thereby became a member 

of said cooperative; and 

WHEREAS, said contract provides that member units of local government shall by 

majority vote of its corporate authorities select one (1) person to represent that body on  

the Board of Directors of said Intergovernmental Agency; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the CORPORATE AUTHORITIES, of the 

Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator, of the Village of River 

Forest is hereby appointed to represent the Village of River Forest on the Board of 

Directors of said Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency commencing March 14, 

2017. 

Section 2. Jonathan Pape, Management Analyst, of the Village of River Forest, is 

hereby selected as the alternate representative to serve if Lisa Scheiner is unable to carry 

out the aforesaid duties as the representative of the Village of River Forest to said 

Intergovernmental Agency. 

Section 3. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval according to law. 

PASSED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of River Forest, Illinois, this 13th day 

of March, 2017. 

Ayes: 



Nays: 

Absent: 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2017. 

 

Catherine Adduci, Village President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

Sharon Halperin, Village Clerk 

 





Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 8, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President and  
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Microsoft Software Licenses  
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Issue 
 
The FY 2017 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan includes $39,000 in the Capital 
Improvement Fund to purchase and implement software licenses from Microsoft ($36,250 for 
licenses and $2,750 for consulting hours to assist in the procurement, registration, etc. of the 
licenses) 
 
Analysis 
 
In prior years, the Village’s former IT support service provider utilized their software 
licensing agreement with Microsoft to purchase additional licenses for the Village of River 
Forest.  The Village no longer utilizes that service provider and is therefore required to 
purchase and register software licenses as a unique entity.  The Village worked with its 
current IT consultant, Client First, to identify the licenses needed and obtain competitive 
pricing.  This update will bring all Village services current and compliant with all licensing 
requirements. The following quotes were received and are attached for your review: 
 

Vendor Cost 
CDWG $27,477.48 
Continental Resources $31,578.50 
SHI $38,316.20 

 
Sufficient funds exist to purchase the required license.  In addition, to date the Village has only 
spent $172.50 of the funds available for consulting on this project.  It is expected that the total 
cost of this project will not exceed the budgeted amount.  
 
Recommended Action 



 
Village Staff and Client First recommend that the Village Board waive formal bidding and 
authorize staff to purchase the needed licenses from CDWG in the amount of $27,477.48. 



Page 1 of 2

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

DEAR SEAN GALLAGHER,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below. Click 

here to convert your quote to an order.

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

HSBH985 2/15/2017 LICENSE ONLY 0334143 $27,477.48

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Microsoft Windows Server 2016 - license 90 4320622 $23.64 $2,127.60

Mfg. Part#: R18-05173

UNSPSC: 43233004

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: Illinois Microsoft M+D products (CMS6945110)

Microsoft Office Standard 2016 - license 80 3845732 $230.91 $18,472.80

Mfg. Part#: 021-10559

UNSPSC: 43231513

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: Illinois Microsoft M+D products (CMS6945110)

Microsoft Visio Standard 2016 - license 10 3845727 $154.47 $1,544.70

Mfg. Part#: D86-05738

UNSPSC: 43231507

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: Illinois Microsoft M+D products (CMS6945110)

Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 Standard - license 1 3845739 $438.18 $438.18

Mfg. Part#: 312-04372

UNSPSC: 43232915

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: Illinois Microsoft M+D products (CMS6945110)

Microsoft Exchange Server 2016 Standard CAL - license 90 3845741 $54.38 $4,894.20

Mfg. Part#: 381-04439

UNSPSC: 43232915

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: Illinois Microsoft M+D products (CMS6945110)

PURCHASER BILLING INFO SUBTOTAL

$27,477.48

Billing Address:

THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST

ACCTS PAYABLE

400 PARK AVE

RIVER FOREST, IL 60305-1798

Phone: (708) 366-8500

Payment Terms: Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local

SHIPPING

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$27,477.48

DELIVER TO Please remit payments to:

http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=HSBH985
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=HSBH985
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=4320622
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3845732
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3845727
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3845739
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3845741


Page 2 of 2

Shipping Address:

THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST

SEAN GALLAGHER

400 PARK AVE

RIVER FOREST, IL 60305-1798

Phone: (708) 366-8500

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Need Assistance? CDW•G SALES CONTACT INFORMATION

Stephen Rooney | (877) 863-3197 | steproo@cdwg.com

This quote is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

© 2017 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


CRI Quote Form Rev. 01.01.06 Page 1 of 1

Ph: 773-304-3229 02/16/17
175 Middlesex Turnpike, Bedford, MA 01730-9137 Fax: 773-714-1426 QUOTATION

All Pages of this Sales Quotation are subjected to Continental Resources, Inc.'s general terms and conditions outlined in our website under Terms and Conditions at http://www.conres.com. 
Customer Village of River Forest Validity Period    30 Days
Quote Number 02.16.17-1c Microsoft Volume Licensing Terms (Pending Credit Approval)   NET 30

Customer Information Continental Resources, Inc. Sales Contact
Jim McKevett

Village of River Forest Continental Resources, Inc.
400 Park Avenue Microsoft Volume Licensing Office: 773-304-3229
River Forest, IL 60305 Cell: 847-208-5429
(708) 366-8500 Efax: 781-687-6461

jmckevett@conres.com

Item # QTY Product Product Description Unit Price Ext Price

10 90 R18-05167 OLP GOVT WIN SVR CAL 2016 NL USR CAL $27.50 $2,475.00
20 80 021-10556 OLP GOVT OFFICE STD 2016 NL $265.00 $21,200.00
30 10 D86-05735 OLP GOVT VISIO STD 2016 NL $177.50 $1,775.00
40 1 312-04369 OLP GOVT EXCHANGE SVR STD 2016 NL $503.50 $503.50
50 90 381-04453 OLP GOVT EXCHANGE STD CAL 2016 NL USR CAL $62.50 $5,625.00

Total: $31,578.50

ConRes Doc Date 4-28-14 Rev 3.4

TERMS: Net 30 and subject to credit review.
Above Sales Quotation is subjected to Continental Resources, Inc. (herein after referred to as ConRes) general terms and conditions outlined at www.conres.com.  Pricing subject to change. Delivery is 
conveyed F.O.B. shipping point. For Sale of Equipment, Title passes to Customer when payment is made in full and is received by ConRes. Title on all rental or leased equipment remains with ConRes 

and or Continental Leasing Co. Inc. Risk of loss is FOB shipping point. Payment of Freight Insurance modifies Risk of Loss to FOB destination. Taxes, freight, and insurance may not be included in above 
quote. Return rights are restricted to vendor or manufacturer’s policy in existence at time of return request. Third party leases must be identified before shipment and Lessor must be judged credit worthy 

by ConRes. All payments are in United States Dollars. License and Maintenance Agreements: If customer agrees to purchase any items that carry a license or maintenance agreement and if invoice(s) for 
these product(s) is (are) not paid within approved credit terms, ConRes reserves the right to and customer grants permission to revoke the agreement(s). International Terms and Conditions: All payment 
terms are in United States Dollars. All international credit granted is governed by The United Nations Convention on Contracts for International Sale or Rental of Goods (CISG) and all letters of credit are 
governed by the Uniform Customs and Practice for Documentary Credits (1993 Revision International Chamber of Commerce Publication No. 500). All international shipments require a completed End 

User Statement.  For our unabridged terms and conditions please visit  http://www.itsolutions.conres.com/terms.

mailto:jmckevett@conres.com


 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  12989346
Created On:  2/15/2017
Valid Until:   2/28/2017

 
Village of River Forest

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Sean Gallagher
400 Park Avenue
River Forest, IL 60305
United States
Phone: 708-942-5621
Fax:  
Email: sgallagher@clientfirstcg.com

 

Charlie Mcclelland
290 Davidson Ave,
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 800-477-6479
Fax:
Email: Charlie_Mcclelland@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 "OLP WIN SVR CAL 2016 SNGL NL USR CALProduct stocked by manufacturer.

Delivery times vary." 
   Microsoft - Part#: R18-05123

90 $32.85 $2,956.50

 
2 "OLP SNGL OFFICE STD 2016 NL Product stocked by manufacturer. Delivery times

vary." 
   Microsoft - Part#: 021-10554

80 $321.93 $25,754.40

 
3 "OLP SNGL VISIO STD 2016 NL Product stocked by manufacturer. Delivery times

vary." 
   Microsoft - Part#: D86-05710

10 $215.68 $2,156.80

 
4 "OLP SNGL EXCHANGE SVR STD 2016 NLProduct stocked by manufacturer.

Delivery times vary." 
   Microsoft - Part#: 312-04349

1 $612.10 $612.10

 
5 "OLP SNGL EXCHANGE STD CAL 2016 NL USR CALProduct stocked by

manufacturer. Delivery times vary." 
   Microsoft - Part#: 381-04398

90 $75.96 $6,836.40

 
Total $38,316.20

Additional Comments

Please note that all returns are subject to manufacturer/distributor approval and must be within 30 days of invoice date & factory
sealed, unless defective.

The Products offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Policy posted at www.shi.com/returnpolicy, unless there is
an existing agreement between SHI and the Customer.

http://www.shi.com/returnpolicy


 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  March 13, 2017 
 
TO: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator   
 
FROM:  John Anderson, Director of Public Works 

 
SUBJECT: Award of Contract - 2017 Tree and Stump Removal Program  

  
 
Issue: Staff is seeking the award of a contract for the 2017 Tree and Stump Removal Program. 
 
Analysis: The removal of approximately 80 parkway trees which will be identified for removal 
due to disease or the declining health of the tree will be necessary in 2017.  This is a 
continuation of the contractual removal program.  It was determined that the contractual 
removal program is a cost effective method of making sure the needed removals are performed 
on a continuing basis to supplement tree removals performed by Public Works staff. This 
program also allows Village forestry crews to continue with their portion of tree pruning 
throughout the Village.               
 
Staff received and opened five competitive bids on March 8, 2017.  As the attached bid 
tabulation indicates, Homer Tree Care, Inc. was the lowest bidder with a bid amount of 
$35,304.  The amount budgeted for contractual tree removals was $44,000.  The Village has 
previously worked with Homer Tree Care, Inc.  They were the tree removal contractor in 2014 
and performed well.  They have also had numerous municipal tree removal and pruning 
contracts throughout the local area in recent years.  Homer Tree Care, Inc. has experience 
working on large tree removal contracts.  Accordingly, we recommend the award of the 2017 
Tree and Stump Removal Contract to Homer Tree Care, Inc. 
 
Recommendation:  If the Village Board concurs with Staff’s recommendation, the following 
motion would be appropriate: Motion to award the 2017 Tree and Stump Removal Program to 
Homer Tree Care, Inc. in the amount of $35,304 and authorize the Village Administrator to 
execute the contract agreement.   



DBH

R ange

T reesP er

R ange

DBH

R ange

T otalinches

perDBH

R ange

T otal# of

S tum ps

U pto25" 54 U pto25" 972 80

O ver25" 26 O ver25" 780

# ofT rees: 80

BidperDBH R ange R ank

U pto25" $15.80

O ver25" $23.75 Ea. $102.25 2

U pto25" $14.50

O ver25" $19.50 Ea. $75.00 1

U pto25" $21.00

O ver25" $26.00 Ea. $150.00 4

U pto25" $22.00

O ver25" $30.00 Ea. $180.00 5

U pto25" $21.00

O ver25" $25.00 Ea. $150.00 3

U pto25"

O ver25" Ea. 1

U pto25"

O ver25" Ea. 1

U pto25"

O ver25" Ea.

U pto25"

O ver25" Ea.

R iverForest2017-18T reeandS tum pR em ovalBidT abulation

BidperS tum p

BidCriteria

S teveP iper& S ons

Hom erT reeCareInc.

$42,062.60

$35,304.00

$0.00

T otalCost

$0.00

$59,184.00

Com pany

DavisT reeCare&

L andscaping

CleanCutT reeS ervice

$52,692.00

AcresGroup
$51,912.00

$0.00

$0.00





















































































































 MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  March 13, 2017 
 
TO: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator   
 
FROM:  John Anderson, Director of Public Works 

 
SUBJECT: Award of Contract - 2017 Tree Trimming Program  

  
 
Issue: Staff is seeking the award of a contract for the 2017 Tree Trimming Program. 
 
Analysis: 711 parkway trees have been identified in the southern portion of the Village for 
contractual tree trimming.  These trees have recently been logged into a database with their 
condition rating, size, species, and location for incorporation into the Village GIS system.  The 
trees that have been identified for contractual trimming are all 12 inches in diameter or larger.  
Village staff will perform tree trimming on trees that are less than 12 inches in diameter.  It is 
important to keep trees trimmed on a regular basis in order to maintain the health of the tree, 
ensure fewer limbs fall during periods of high winds, and to improve traffic and pedestrian 
sightlines throughout Village streets.  This will be the beginning of an annual program to obtain 
accurate data on Village trees during the winter months on the portion of the Village which will 
then be scheduled for trimming.  It is anticipated that these planned trimming areas will be 
divided into five sections of the Village.  It was determined that the contractual trimming 
program is a cost effective method of making sure the needed trimming is performed on a 
continuing basis to supplement the tree trimming performed by Public Works staff. This 
program also allows Village forestry crews to continue with their portion of tree removals 
throughout the Village.               
 
Staff received and opened five competitive bids on March 8, 2017.  As the attached bid 
tabulation indicates, Davis Tree Care & Landscaping, Inc. was the lowest bidder with a bid 
amount of $34,722. The anticipated amount budgeted was $35,010.  The Village has previously 
worked with Davis Tree Care & Landscaping, Inc.  They have also had numerous municipal tree 
trimming and removal contracts throughout the local area in recent years.  Davis Tree Care & 
Landscaping, Inc. is a local tree care company (based in Forest Park, IL) and has experience 
working on large tree trimming contracts.  Accordingly, we recommend the award of the 2017 
Tree and Stump Removal Contract to Davis Tree Care & Landscaping, Inc. 
 
Recommendation:  If the Village Board concurs with Staff’s recommendation, the following 
motion would be appropriate: Motion to award the 2017 Tree Trimming Program to Davis Tree 
Care & Landscaping, Inc. in the amount of $34,722 and authorize the Village Administrator to 
execute the contract agreement.   



DBH R ange

T reesP er

R ange

12"to24" 548

25"to36" 144

O ver36" 17

BidperDBH R ange R ank

12"to24" $46.85 $25,673.80

25"to36" $86.50 $12,456.00 3

O ver36" $112.50 $1,912.50

12"to24" $39.00 $21,372.00

25"to36" $75.00 $10,800.00 1

O ver36" $150.00 $2,550.00

12"to24" $105.00 $57,540.00

25"to36" $145.00 $20,880.00 5

O ver36" $190.00 $3,230.00

12"to24" $45.00 $24,660.00

25"to36" $65.00 $9,360.00 2

O ver36" $90.00 $1,530.00

12"to24" $68.00 $37,264.00

25"to36" $68.00 $9,792.00 4

O ver36" $99.00 $1,683.00

12"to24" $0.00

25"to36" $0.00 1

O ver36" $0.00

12"to24" $0.00

25"to36" $0.00 1

O ver36" $0.00

T otalCost

$0.00

$81,650.00

Com pany

DavisT reeCare&

L andscaping

CleanCutT reeS ervice

$34,722.00

AcresGroup

W inklersT reeAnd

L andscaping

$35,550.00

$48,739.00

$0.00

R iverForest2017T reeT rim m ingBidT abulation

BidCriteria

S teveP iper& S ons
$40,042.30























































































 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE: March 13, 2017 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Accessible Parking Space Request – 11 Ashland Ave  
  
 
Issue: Bob and Maureen Gorman of 11 Ashland Avenue have requested that an ADA-accessible 
parking space be designated in front of their home due to a medical necessity.  
 
Analysis: The east and west sides of Ashland Avenue are currently designated as “Resident Permit 
Only” zones between the hours of 5:00pm and 2:00am. The designation of an ADA-accessible 
parking space does not appear to adversely impact the current parking zones.  
 
Recommendations: 
Staff recommends the designation of the ADA-accessible space with the following motion: Motion 
to designate an ADA-accessible parking space in front of the property located at 11 Ashland Avenue 
in accordance with the attached ordinance.  
 
Attachments: 
Ordinance 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO.    
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 9, ENTITLED "TRAFFIC 
REGULATIONS, CHAPTER 3, ENTITLED "TRAFFIC SCHEDULES," 

OF THE RIVER FOREST VILLAGE CODE 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of River 
Forest, Cook County, Illinois: 
 
Section 1: That Title 9, entitled "Traffic Regulations," Chapter 3, entitled "Traffic 
Schedules," of the River Forest Village Code, Section 9-3-20 thereof, entitled 
“Schedule 20, Accessible Parking Zones Designated” be amended by adding the 
following: 
 
ASHLAND AVE, the east side from 150 feet north of the north curb of Madison 
Street continuing north for a distance of 30 feet. 
 
Section 2: That the appropriate signage be installed in accordance with Section 1. 
 

Section 3: That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this 
Ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 
 
Section 4: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 
approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

 
 
AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ADOPTED 

 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
Sharon Halperin 
Village Clerk 

Catherine Adduci 
Village President 



Village of River Forest 
400 Park Avenue 

River Forest, IL 60305 
Tel:  708-366-8500 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 13, 2017 
 
To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
 
From: John Anderson, Director of Public Works 
 
Subject: Grant of Storm Water Easement – St. Vincent Ferrer Church  
 ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue 
The Village is seeking a storm water easement with St. Vincent Ferrer Church that will provide the 
Village with the access to the property that is necessary to inspect and repair storm water 
management areas should public safety become a concern. 
 
Analysis 
St. Vincent is constructing an addition to their building and installing a parking lot along the west 
side of their property. Village staff requested that St. Vincent provide the Village with an easement 
that would provide the Village with the right to access the storm water management area to mitigate 
or prevent public safety issues associated with the facilities and to ensure that proper maintenance is 
being conducted on a regular basis. 
 
The storm water easement is a requirement that is typical of larger scale developments that have 
occurred recently in River Forest because it is recorded on Title to the property and clear to all 
parties in perpetuity. The agreement typically includes language that requires the following: 
 

- The owner of the stormwater management area must maintain and operate stormwater areas 
as designed and intended. 

- The owner grants the Village access to the property to inspect the stormwater management 
area and perform maintenance that the owner has failed to perform 

- The owner agrees to reimburse the Village for its costs and if the owner fails to do so, the 
Village may file a foreclosable lien on the property to secure reimbursement. 

 
Attached for the Board’s review and consideration is a storm water easement that allows the Village 
access to the property and storm water management area. The Village is allowed to inspect the 
facilities on a routine basis and in emergency situations and may make repairs if the property owner 
has failed to maintain or repair its facility in order to keep it operating as intended and designed.    
 
 



Recommended Board Action 
Approve a Resolution authorizing the execution of a storm water easement between the Village of 
River Forest and St. Vincent Ferrer’s Literary Society. 
 
Attachment(s) 

· Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Storm Water Easement 
· Storm Water Easement 



1 376107_1  

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A GRANT OF STORM 
WATER EASEMENT (ST. VINCENT FERRER’S LITERARY SOCIETY) 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (“Village”) is an Illinois municipal corporation 

organized under the Illinois Constitution and the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, St. Vincent Ferrer’s Literary Society (“St. Vincent”) owns and operates a 

facility in the Village on the property commonly known as 1530 Jackson Avenue, River 

Forest, Illinois 60305 (“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to make inspections of the storm water detention 

facility from time to time, to ensure that the storm water facility functions as designed and 

intended to protect Village property, and the Village desires to have the authority to take 

corrective action to repair Property storm water facility when immediate or prompt action is 

required to avoid any adverse impacts; and 

WHEREAS, St. Vincent and the Village have determined that is in the best interests of 

each to enter into an easement agreement in which St. Vincent agrees to allow the Village to 

inspect and, upon notice, take corrective action to repair the storm water detention facility when 

immediate or prompt action is require to avoid any adverse impact; and 

WHEREAS, the Village desires to enter into the “ Grant of Storm Water Easement” (the 

“Easement”), a copy of which is attached hereto as GRANT OF STORM WATER 

EASEMENT and made a part hereof, which has been executed by St. Vincent; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the Village to 

approve the Agreement; 

  



2 376107_1  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of 

the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois: 

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions 
 

of, this Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein. 
 

Section 2: That the President and Village Board of the Village of River Forest hereby 
 

find that it is in the best interests of the Village of River Forest and its residents that the 

Easement be entered into by the Village of River Forest, with the Easement to be substantially in 

the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as GRANT OF STORM WATER 

EASEMENT. 

Section 3: That the President and Village Clerk of the City of River Forest, Cook 
 

County, Illinois, are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of River 

Forest, the aforesaid Easement, and all other documents related thereto necessary to 

consummate the transactions contemplated therein on behalf of the Village of River Forest. 

Section 4: That this  Resolution  shall  take effect from and after its adoption and 
 

approval as required by law. 



3 376107_1  

 
 
 

PASSED on a roll call vote of the Corporate Authorities on the 13th day of March, 
 

2017. 
 
 
 
AYES:    

 
NAYS:    

ABSENT: 
 

 
 

APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2017. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Village President 

 

 
 

APPROVED and FILED in my office this 13th day of March, 2017 and published in 
pamphlet form in the Village of River Forest, Cook County, Illinois. 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________ 

Village Clerk 





















1  

Village of River Forest POLICE                  

DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO: Eric Palm- Village Administrator 

FROM: Gregory Weiss- Chief of Police 

DATE: March 7, 2017 

SUBJECT: February 2017 Monthly Report 

 

Crime Statistics 

During the month of February Part I crimes increased by 7 reported offenses compared to the same 

time last year. There was a slight increase in Part II reported crimes in February, the majority of 

which can be contributed to an increase in traffic enforcement (up 13%  from last year). 
 

 Feb. Feb. Diff. % YTD YTD Diff. % 
2016 2017 +/- +/- 2016 2017 +/- +/- 

Part I* 11 18 7 64% 31 38 7 23% 

         
Part II** 70 78 8 11% 152 168 16 11% 

         
Reports*** 155 156 1 .01% 319 313 -6 -2% 

         
Events**** 1321 1931 610 46% 2775 3988 1,213 44% 

 

*Part I offenses include homicide, criminal sexual assault, robbery, aggravated battery, burglary, 

theft, and motor vehicle theft. 

**Part II offenses include simple battery, assault, criminal trespass, disorderly conduct, and all 

other misdemeanor and traffic offenses. 

*** Reports  (new  category) include total  number  of reports written  by  officers  during  the 

month.    This  data  was compiled beginning in Sept. 2015 

****Events (new category) include all activities conducted by officers, including foot patrols, premise 

checks, traffic stops and all other calls for service not included as PART I and PART II offenses. 
 

 

Town Center 

The police department conducted 118 calls for service at the Town Center properties; of those calls 

there was five (5) reported crimes which included three (3) retail thefts and two (2) other thefts. 

 



2  

Community Support 

During the month of February our School Resource Officer (SRO) taught several “Too Good for Drugs” 

classes at both the public and private schools. This course is the replacement for the DARE classes previous 

taught at the grade schools. The curriculum discussions include not only about the dangers of drugs but also 

about bullying and building self–confidence.  

 

The SRO also attended the Behavioral Threat Assessment training seminar held at District 97, this training 

will allow him to assist our school district in assessing at risk youth.  

 

During February, Officer Czernik continued to participate in the OPRF M-Team meeting at Oak Park 

Township. This meeting allows participants to give input on programs that will help youth who are in need 

of special attention. 

 

Upcoming Special Events for March:       Share the Warmth Relay Race    March 19th  
 
 

Active Solicitor Permits 

Individual or Description Expires 
 
 

Pointe Pest Control Pest Control Services 21-Jun-17 

Budget Right Handyman Handyman  Certificates 24-Jun-17 

Melanie Darro Inc. Dry Cleaning Promotions 29-Jul-17 

Comcast Internet Services 16-Sep-17 

Edward Jones Financial Services 4-Oct-17 
 

Budget and Fiscal Monitoring  

February 1st –February 28th  

February completes the tenth month of FY17, and parking citation revenue for the fiscal year is below 

the estimated projection. Administrative Tow revenue was higher than the projected revenue for the 

month of February, however Admin. Tow year to date projections are slightly below the average. In addition 

we have met our annual projection for Local Ordinance violations, and overtime in February was lower 

than the monthly projection. 

 

 

Revenue/Expenditure Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Category  Total # 

Paid 

2/17 

Total # paid 

FY17 

Y-T-D 

Expenditure/ 

Revenue 

2/17 

FY17 Y-T-D 

Expenditure/Revenue 

Parking/Compliance 

Citations 

277 2,711 $11,408 $125,626 

Admin. Tows 30 213 $15,000 $106,500 

Local Ordinance  0 21 0 $5,407 

Overtime 177hrs. 2,366hrs. $11,347 $143,925 



3  

Significant Arrests: 
 

17-00173: Reckless Driving/Drag Racing: 

On February 04, 2017 a River Forest officer was on patrol in the area of the North and Lathrop when they 

observed two vehicles traveling e/b North at speeds in excess of 80mph.   The vehicles appeared to be racing 

each other down North Ave. The officer completed a traffic stop on both vehicles in the area of the 7000 block of 

North.  The drivers, 26 year old female from Chicago and the 25 year old male from Chicago were arrested. 

Both were charged with Aggravated Speeding, Reckless Driving and Street Racing.  Both were released on 

bond. 

 

17-00206: Felony DUI, Obstructing a Peace Officer, Resisting a Peace Officer: 

On February 10, 2017 a River Forest officer observed a vehicle in the 7800 block of North Ave. driving 

erratically.  The driver, a 26 year old male from Chicago made a quick erratic turn, exited the vehicle, and began 

to walk away.  The officer asked the male driver several times to return to his vehicle and provide identification.  

The male driver did not comply, and was advised to place his hands behind his back by the officer.  The driver 

again refused to comply.  Officers physically had to subdue the male and deploy a TASER before the subject 

was taken into custody.  He was charged with Felony DUI, Obstructing a Peace Officer, and Resisting a Peace 

Officer. 

 

17-00222: PCS Arrest:  

On February 13, 2017, a River Forest officer was on patrol in the Town Center parking lot at 7200 blk of Lake St 

when the officer observed a vehicle pull into the parking lot. The occupants of the vehicle split up; one male 

subject went into the Starbuck’s and the other two subjects (one male, one female) into the Noodles & Co. As the 

officer entered the Starbuck’s, he observed the subject exit the bathroom (which is a known location for 

narcotics use) and the subject appeared to be under the influence. The officer followed the subject out the door 

and the other two subjects exited the Noodles & Co. All three subjects entered their vehicle and pulled out of 

the lot. The officer saw that the vehicle had multiple obstructions blocking the windshield, which is a violation 

of the vehicle code, and the officer conducted a traffic stop on the vehicle in the 100 blk of Harlem Ave. The 

officer made contact with the driver, a 27 year old male from Lake Zurich, the front seat male passenger and the 

rear seat female passenger.  The driver provided a valid driver’s license but the driver did not have proof of 

insurance. The front seat male passenger (subject who went to the Starbuck’s) was the owner of the vehicle and 

he was also unable to locate an insurance card for the vehicle. A search of the front seat male passenger revealed 

a syringe, a knife, and 4 small baggies; 2 empty baggies and 2 baggies containing suspected heroin. A search of 

the passenger side compartment revealed another 2 baggies containing suspected heroin. A search of the driver 

yielded a syringe and the search rear seat female passenger yielded negative results for contraband. The front 

seat male passenger was taken into custody. Vehicle was released to the driver. The driver was cited for no 

insurance and for obstructed front windshield. The driver and rear seat female passenger were released from 

the scene. The front seat male passenger was transported to RFPD.  The subject was charged with PCS and 

placed into a cell awaiting bond hearing. 

 

17-00228: Criminal Trespass To Motor Vehicle:  

On February 14, 2017 River Forest officers received a call of a suspicious vehicle that was last seen E/B North 

Ave. from CVS located at 7929 North Ave.  The caller provided a license plate for the vehicle and the vehicle 

was entered into LEADS as stolen.  Officers located the vehicle and the driver, a 37 year old male from 



4  

Northlake at the 7-11 located at 1140 Harlem.  He was taken into custody, and was found to be in possession of 

the keys for the vehicle which was taken from Melrose Park.  The Cook County Felony Review Unit declined to 

charge the subject with Possession of a Stolen Motor Vehicle, and he was subsequently charged with criminal 

trespass to a vehicle and released after posting bond.    

 

17-00254: DUI Arrest:     

On February 19, 2017, Forest Park police advised they were trying to locate a driver asleep at the wheel on 

Madison St and put out information on a partial plate of the vehicle. The officer was on patrol in the area and 

observed a vehicle matching the description and partial plate traveling w/b on Madison at Thatcher. The officer 

observed multiple IVC violations and conducted a traffic stop on the vehicle at Madison west of 1st Ave. The 

officer made contact with the driver, a 36 year female from Maywood, who showed signs of alcohol 

impairment. The driver provided a valid driver’s license but could not produce insurance. The driver submitted 

to field sobriety tests at the scene of the stop and she failed all of them. The driver was taken into custody and 

transported to the station. The vehicle was towed from the scene and during the inventory search of the vehicle; 

an open bottle of alcohol was located in the driver’s purse. At the station, the driver was read the warning to 

motorist and refused to submit a breath test.  The driver was charged with DUI and other IVC violations, and 

then placed in a cell awaiting bond. 

 

The following chart summarizes and compares the measured activity for all three patrol watches during 

the month of February 2017: 

 

 Midnights 
2230-0630 

Day Watch 
0630-1430 

Third Watch 
1430-2230 

Criminal Arrests 8 7 4 
Quasi-Criminal Arrests 5 0 1 
DUI Arrests 6 1 3 
Misdemeanor Traffic 25 6 6 
Hazardous Moving Violations 132 56 57 
Compliance/Parking Citations 227 98 57 
Warrant Arrests 3 1 1 
Premise Checks/Foot Patrols 181 229 280 
Field Interviews 15 20 49 
Traffic Stops 199 225 225 
Written Reports 41 56 78 
Administrative Tows 17 8 7 
Sick Days 2 5 0 

 

Detective Division 

During the month of February, the Detective Unit opened up/reviewed fifteen (15) cases for potential follow-up.  

Of those cases, one (1) was Cleared by Arrest, three (3) cases were Exceptionally Cleared, seven (7) were 

Administratively Closed or Suspended, one (1) was Unfounded, and one (1) was Referred to Other Jurisdiction, 

and two (2) are pending.  The Unit also continued to investigate open cases from previous months.   

 

 

 

 

 



5  

Year to Date Arrest Statistics 

 

Quantity Arrested # Felony  

Charges 

# Misdemeanor 

Charges 

# Warrants 

 9  2 7 0 

February 2017 Case Assignment Summary 

 

Part I # Cases Cleared 

by 

Arrest 

Adm 

Close

d 

Scree

n Out 

Susp Excep

t 

Pend Refer Unfou

nd 

Battery 1      1   

Residential Burglary 1      1   

Burglary from Auto 1  1      1 

Theft 4  2   1    

Total Part I 7 0 3 0 0 1 2 0 1 

Part II # Cases Cleared 

by 

Arrest 

Adm 

Close

d 

Scree

n Out 

Susp Excep

t 

Clear 

Pend Refer Unfou

nd 

Assault 1  1       

Assist Other Agency- 

Found Property 

 

1 

  

1 

      

Deceptive Practice 1     1    

Retail Theft 5 1 3   1    

Total Part II 8 1 5   2    

TOTALS 15 1 8 0 0 3 2 0 1 

 

 

Training 
During the month of February 2017, the Department sent eighteen (18) Police Officers for a total of two 

hundred and forty-eight (248) hours of training. The information detailing the courses and total training time is 

listed below. 

 

Officer Name Course Title Start End Hours 

Bowman Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/22/2017  8 

Buckner Mental Health First Aid 02/17/2017  8 

Buckner Taser X26P End User Instructor 02/22/2017  8 

Carroll Dealing with the Mentally Ill 02/07/2017  8 

Carroll Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/22/2017  8 

Cassidy Ground Fighting Control Tactics 02/07/2017 02/08/2017 16 

Czernik 2017 Student Behavioral Threat Assessment 02/09/2017  8 

Czernik Escaping Neck Restraints 02/21/2017  8 

Czernik Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/27/2017  8 

Eberling Acting Patrol Officer in Charge 02/21/2017 02/22/2017 16 



6  

Officer Name Course Title Start End Hours 

Fields Dealing with the Mentally Ill 02/07/2017  8 

Fries Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/22/2017  8 

Greenwood 
Basics of Property and Evidence Room 

Management 02/16/2017  8 

Greenwood 
Cook County Child Advocacy Center Protocol 

Training 02/28/2017  4 

Greenwood Taser X26P End User Instructor 02/22/2017  8 

Greenwood Taser X26P End User Instructor 02/27/2017  8 

Humphreys Escaping Neck Restraints 02/21/2017  8 

Labriola Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/27/2017  8 

Laird 
Basics of Property and Evidence Room 

Management 02/16/2017  8 

Laird Mental Health First Aid 02/17/2017  8 

Laird 
Cook County Child Advocacy Center Protocol 

Training 02/28/2017  4 

O’Shea Procedural Justice for Law Enforcement Agencies 02/17/2017  8 

Ostrowski Ground Fighting Control Tactics 02/07/2017 02/08/2017 16 

Pluto Mental Health First Aid 02/17/2017  8 

Ransom Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/22/2017  8 

Swierczynski Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/27/2017  8 

Szczesny Taser X26P End User Recertification 02/27/2017  8 

Tagle Acting Patrol Officer in Charge 02/21/2017 02/22/2017 16 

18 Total   248 

 



   
     

              MEMORANDUM                        
 

TO:  Eric J. Palm 
    Village Administrator 
 
                          James L Eggert 

FROM: James Eggert 
  Fire Chief  
 
DATE:  March 3, 2017 
 

   SUBJECT: Monthly Report – February – 2017  
 
The Fire Department responded to 167 calls during the month of February. This is about our 
average number of calls in comparison to 2016. We experienced 6 fire related calls in this month. 
Emergency Medical Service calls represent 56% of our response activity for the month of 
February. 
 
 

Incident Group Count 
100 – Fire 6 
200 – Rupture/Explosion 0 
300 – Rescue/EMS 93 
400 – Hazardous Condition 2 
500 – Service Calls 22 
600 – Good Intent 21 
700 – False Alarm  23 
800 – Severe Weather 0 
900 – Special Incidents 0 

 
 
The month of February had the Fire Department completing their work on the budget and finishing the 
reporting requirements for the Emergency Telephone System Board. A letter of commitment to our 
surrounding communities and agencies that take and receive calls for service in our community is sent. 
A report to the Illinois Commerce Commission Clerk and 9-1-1 Program Director, and Attorney 
General’s office was finalized and sent.  
 
 
 



P a g e  | 2 
 
 
 
Deputy Chief Bohlmann and I attended the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) Fire 
Chiefs steering committee meeting. Direction on specific training was the topic. In particular was a 
discussion on IRMA risk management claim reports. 
 
February 5th through 8th was the MABAS conference in Springfield. Topics included current mass 
shootings and homespun improvised explosive devices (IED’s) incidents on the national and 
international scene, political review of current bills and public acts, Interoperable communications, 
urban area search & rescue and firefighter safety ‘Everyone Goes Home” program. 
 
The conference was very informative of which much was brought back to share within our department 
and among the surrounding communities. 
 
 
Fire Department spent considerable time at Dominican University to review the fire suppression 
operations, including extent of suppression sprinklers and standpipe locations. All three shifts and 
administration officers were involved.  
 
TRIPCOM, our three-community Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), continues to plan a functional 
capacity exercise for Fall 2017. The next meeting is scheduled for April.  
 
 
Officers Meeting  
 
Topic discussed during our monthly department officers meeting include; 
 
 Personnel Evaluations 
 Apparatus  
 Budget (station, equipment, SCBA compressor) 
 Daily Duties 

Radio System 
 Communications 

Fuel loads for gasoline powered equipment 
Pre-Plans 
Rapid Intervention Team (RIT) 
 

Incidents of Interest 
 

Incidents within River Forest were a chimney and a stove fire, which caused significate damage. 
 
Significant fires River Forest did respond to were in the Village of Elmwood Park and Oak. 
     

See details below. 



P a g e  | 3 
 
 

 
 
 
Suppression Activities 
 
For the month of February, we responded to 167 emergency calls, which is about our normal 
amount of calls. Of this total, six were fire related incidents. Four of these fire incidents occurred 
in River Forest.  The other two fire incidents occurred outside of River Forest. 
 
The first fire incident was in Elmwood Park.  River Forest crews assisted with extinguishment on 
a garage fire. 
 
The second fire was a structure fire in Oak Park.  River Forest crews assisted with 
extinguishment, performed overhaul, and performed secondary searches.  
 
The third fire was a chimney fire in River Forest.  River Forest crews extinguished the fire with a 
water can. 
 
The fourth fire was a cooking fire that severely damaged an oven in River Forest.  Crews 
disconnected the oven and ventilated the house.  Damage was confined to the oven and estimated 
at $2,000. 
 
The other two fires were brush fires that caused no damage.  These two fires were found after a 
controlled burn was completed in the forest preserve. 
 
 
Training  
 
This month the department participated in various training activities such as: 

 
 All shifts continued their assigned building inspections 
 All shifts working with new members to acquaint them with our procedures. 
 FF/PM McKenna attended Technical Rescue Awareness class on Feb 4 in Spring 

Grove 
 Division 11 Hazardous Material drill was held in River Forest this month. Subject 

was Command and Hazardous Material sectors 
 All shifts completed mandatory training with ‘Lock Out, Tag Out’ and ‘Your Right 

To Know’ Training  
 Sue Siorek from Loyola showed us the new CPAP system 
 All shifts did quarterly intubations per Loyola 

 
 
 



P a g e  | 4 
 
 
 
 
Paramedic Activity  
 
We responded to 93 ambulance calls making contact with 103 patients for the month of 
February, which is about our monthly average number of EMS calls. Of this total, 47 patients 
were classified as ALS, 46 were BLS, and 10 were invalid assists. 20 of the 46 BLS patients 
refused treatment and/or transport.  

A detailed monthly EMS report is available for review.  
 
 
 
Fire Prevention   
 
During the month of February, the Fire Prevention Bureau conducted 37 Company Inspections 
with 16 Violations noted and 13 violations corrected.  
Fire Marshal Wiley is off on medical leave and a detailed monthly Fire Prevention report is 
unavailable.  



 - 1 - 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 

DATE:  March 7, 2017 
 
TO:  Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
FROM:  John Anderson, Director of Public Works  

 
SUBJECT: Monthly Report – February 2017 
  
 
Executive Summary 
 
In the month of February the department of Public Works continued to perform winter 
maintenance operations.  This continues to be a particularly mild winter.   There were no snow and 
ice events in the month of February that required a response from Public Works.  Staff was able to 
take advantage of this opportunity to catch up on needed tree trimming, inlet/catch basin 
cleaning, and street sweeping.  These are not tasks that are performed frequently in a typical 
February; however streets clear of snow and ice allowed these maintenance items to be 
performed.  Public Works management also staff finalized the operating budget documents for 
fiscal year 2018.  A comprehensive tree inventory was compiled for the southern portion of 
Village’s urban forest.  Among the data collected were the tree location, size, species, and 
condition.  All of this information will be uploaded to our GIS database for use on more efficient 
means of future tree maintenance.  The data will also be used for more accurate bid specifications 
for contractual tree trimming and removals. 
 
Public Works items approved by the Village Board of Trustees in February: 
 

 Approve Purchase of a Freightliner Chassis from Truck Country of Wisconsin, Indiana for 
$81,938.22 and the Dump Body, Plow and Hydraulics from Monroe Truck Equipment for 
$52,384 

 Traffic & Safety – Amend Title 9 of the Village Code – Resident Only Parking on the 1000 
block of Jackson Avenue 

 Award Bid & Contract for William Street Alley to Schroeder Asphalt Services for 
$122,179.85 

 Declaration of Surplus Property – Public Works Chipper Truck – Ordinance 
 
Engineering Division Summary 
 

 Received and processed 3 grading permits 

 Continued design on the 2017 Water Main Improvements Project and submitted to 

IEPA and IDOT for permits 

 Completed design and bid out the 2017 Alley Improvement Project  



 - 2 - 

 Completed bid documents for 2017 Street Patching Program 

 Completed bid documents for 2017 Curb and Sidewalk Replacement Program 

 Reviewed sewer televising video and completed bid documents for 2017 Sewer Lining 

Project 

Public Works – Operations 
 
The following is a summary of utility locate requests received from JULIE (Joint Utility Locating 
Information for Excavators) and work orders (streets, forestry, water, sewer, etc.) that were 
received and processed during the past 12 months:     
 

 Mar Apr May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb 

Utility Locates 142 323 216 292 245 105 151 192 106 46 35 52 

Work orders 30 22 45 80 51 52 45 30 12 24 16 16 

 
Water and Sewer 
Monthly Pumpage:  February’s average daily pumpage of 0.99 million gallons (MG) is slightly lower 
than February’s average of 1.03 MG in 2016. 

 
Volume of Water Pumped into the Distribution System (Million Gallons) 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

2015

2016

2017

 
In the month of February Water division personnel continued the replacement of batteries within 
MXUs (water meter reading devices) based on the errors in the meter reading reports performed 
each month.   
 
Residents and businesses were notified of backflow violations, they were given notice to comply or 
have the water shut off on a specific date for non-compliance.  The purpose of this program is to 
remain in compliance with IEPA requirements. 



 - 3 - 

 
The Water division assisted in controlling the water and informed 3 residents that they had service 
line breaks.  The addresses were 7840 Greenfield, 411 Thatcher, 7525 Lake Street, and 910 Park.  
All of the service line repairs were the responsibility of the property owner.  All work was inspected 
and approved.  Water service leaks at 626 and 627 Monroe were repaired by Suburban General 
Construction on 2/1.   
 
The Water Division personnel performed these additional tasks in February: 

 Installed 11 meters 

 Responded to 138 service calls 

 Exercised 4 water system valves 
 
Streets and Forestry 
Staff in the Streets and Forestry division focused heavily on tree trimming, street sweeping, and 
catch basin cleaning.  These are the details of the tasks performed frequently in the month of 
February: 
 

Description of Work Performed Quantity 

Trees Trimmed 324 

Street Sweeping (curb miles) 190 

Sign Repairs/Fabrication 11 

Sewer Televising (linear feet) 60 

Inlet/Catch Basin Cleaning 100 

 



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 1, 2017 
 
To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Building & Zoning Report - February, 2017 
  

The Village issued 87 permits in February, 2017, compared to 67 during the same month in 
2016.  Permit activity remains high overall for the second year.  Permit revenue has exceeded 
projections as a result of larger development projects coming to fruition and obtaining 
building permits. It is anticipated that a building permit will be issued before the end of the 
Fiscal Year for the addition at St. Vincent Ferrer Church.  Permit revenue collected in 
February, 2017, totaled $285,493 compared to $33,422 in January, and was higher because a 
permit was issued for the Concordia Residence Hall.  Large projects and favorable weather 
conditions have resulted in increased building activity for this time of year.  Fiscal Year to-date 
permit revenue is $903,349, which is 185% of the $487,275 projected for FY 16-17 and can be 
attributed to a temporary increase in large commercial and multi-family residential 
developments.   

Planned Development Project Updates 

Below please find a summary of the status of the approved planned development permits as 
well as the pending applications.  
 

Approved: 
• The Promenade (7820 W. Madison Street - Approved July 13, 2015) – Construction 

and inspection of the townhomes continues.  Under the Planned Development 
Ordinance, construction must be completed by April 13, 2018 for the planned 
development permit to remain valid. 

• Community Bank (7751 Lake Street - Approved March 14, 2016) - Construction 
continues on the building and a permit has been issued for temporary and permanent 
signage on the site.  The bank is hoping to open the new facility in early April.  They 
were recently notified that MWRD is requiring the replacement of a lateral sewer line 
that runs under Lake Street, which will require the opening of Lake Street and a permit 
from IDOT.   



• St. Vincent’s Church (1530 Jackson - Approved March 23, 2016) – St. Vincent’s is 
anticipating that construction will begin in the spring.  The Planned Development 
Ordinance requires that a permit application be received within nine (9) months of 
planned development approval.  The church’s architect submitted permit materials 
prior to December 23, 2016, therefore, the planned development permit remains valid.  
The Building Department has completed its review of the plans and the Engineering 
staff is working through a few remaining issues.  Under the Planned Development 
Ordinance, construction must commence by June 23, 2017 for the planned 
development permit to remain valid. Staff continues to anticipate that construction 
will commence and conclude in the timeline required by the Village’s building permit 
and zoning timelines.  

• Concordia University Residence Hall (Bonnie Brae Place - Approved July 12, 2016) – A 
building permit has been issued for this project.  Neighboring residents have been 
notified by CUC that there will be a temporary road closure along certain portions of 
Bonnie Brae Place in early March while a large crane is assembled on site.  This crane 
will be used to place the major structural components in place.  Under the Planned 
Development Ordinance, construction must be completed by April, 2019 for the 
planned development permit to remain valid.  

• Fenwick Artificial Turf Field (Approved September 26, 2016) - Engineering review of 
the project has continued but no building permit application has been received.  

• The Avalon (Bonnie Brae Condominiums - 1101-1111 Bonnie Brae Place - Approved 
November 17, 2016) – The developer is in the process of finalizing construction 
drawings so that a building permit application may be submitted.  The developer 
hopes to commence construction in the spring.  Under the Planned Development 
Ordinance, the developer must submit a completed permit application by August 17, 
2017 for the planned development permit to remain valid. 

 
Pending: 
• Concordia University Cell Tower (7400 Augusta) - The University introduced the 

property to the Village Board on January 9, 2017, regarding a possible increase to the 
height of a portion of the parking garage to allow for the installation of an additional 
cellular antenna.  A notice was mailed to residents that a neighbor meeting will be held 
on March 15, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. at the KCC.  It is anticipated that the University will 
submit an application following the neighbor meeting.  

• Lake Street & Lathrop Avenue – The Village met with the new development partner, 
Sedgewick Properties, as well as Keystone Ventures in mid-January to discuss the 
planned development process and application requirements.  It is anticipated that a 
complete application will be submitted by March 14, 2017.  

• Dominican University Student Commons in the Heart of Campus – The University met 
with the Village Board and held pre-filing conference with the DRB; however, 
commencement of the planned development process has been delayed.  

• River Forest Park District – The Park District met with Board regarding the proposed 
addition to their facility on Lake Street; however, no further action or notice has been 
received regarding applicant’s desire to proceed with the process. 
 



Permit and Real Estate Transfer Activity Measures 

Permits 

Month FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 
May 97 101 113 124 178 
June 113 99 104 144 179 
July 71 76 112 150 140 
August 128 105 84 144 145 
September 123 83 111 180 130 
October 84 82 120 149 140 
November 64 62 55 72 98 
December 37 39 43 79 55 
January 35 23 24 66 107 
February 19 27 22 67 87 
March 42 47 41 109  
April 71 93 78 97  

Two Month Comparison - 50 46 133 194 
Fiscal Year Total 884 837 907 1,381 1,259 

 
Real Estate Transfers 

 February 
2017 

February 
2016 

FY 2017  
Total  

FY 2016 
Total 

Transfers 12 9 203 230 
 
Residential Property Demolition 

 February 
2017 

FYTD 2017  
Total  

FY 2016 
Total 

FY 2015 
Total 

Residential Demolitions 0 7 3 2 
 



1 

 

Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:  March 8, 2017 
 
To: Eric Palm, Village Administrator 
 
From: Lisa Scheiner, Assistant Village Administrator  
 
Subj: Village-Wide Performance Measurement Report – February 2017  
 

 
 

Building Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2016 
Actual 

FY 2016 
Goal 

February 
 Actual 

FY 2017 
YTD 

Plan reviews of large projects completed 
in 3 weeks or less 

81% 
  (115 of 142) 

95% 
100% 

  (13 of 13) 
61% 

  (78 of 127) 

Re-reviews of large projects completed in 
2 weeks or less 

92% 
  (167 of 182) 

95% 
100% 

  (9 of 9) 
69% 

  (102 of 147) 

Plan reviews of small projects completed 
in 5 days or less 

97% 
  (77 of 79) 

95% 
100% 

  (3 of 3) 
100% 

  (135 of 135) 

Express permits issued at time of 
application 

99% 
  (244 of 246) 

100% 
100% 

  (7 of 7) 
99% 

  (178 of 179) 

Inspections completed within 24 hours of 
request 

100% 
  (1249 of 

1249) 
100% 

100% 
  (180 of 

180) 

100% 
  (1390 of 

1390) 

Contractual inspections passed 
95% 

  (1266 of 
1331) 

80% 
85% 

  (153 of 
180) 

92% 
  (1272 of 

1390) 

Inspect vacant properties once per month 
98% 

  (350 of 356) 
100% 

100% 
  (37 of 37) 

100% 
  (328 of 328) 

Conduct building permit survey quarterly 5 

1 per 
quarter 0 3 

Make contact with existing business 
owners 60 

5/month 
60/year 5 50 

     

     

     



2 

 

Fire Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2016 
Actual 

FY 2016 
Goal 

February 
 Actual 

FY 2017 
YTD 

Average fire/EMS response time for 
priority calls for service (Includes call 
processing time) 

4:18 
 minutes 

5 Min 
4:22 

 minutes 
4:05 

 minutes 

Customer complaints and/or public safety 
professional complaints  

0% <1% 0% 0% 

All commercial, multi-family and 
educational properties inspected annually 

391 
335 

inspections 
37 270 

Injuries on duty resulting in lost time 1 <3 0 0 

Plan reviews completed 10 working days 
after third party review 

1.82 days on 
average 

<10 
8. days on 

average 
3.8 days on 

average 

Complete 270 hours of training for each 
shift personnel 

6106. 4824 570.3 7025. 

Inspect and flush fire hydrants semi-
annually 

803 
892 

annually 
0 1507 

     

     Police Department Performance 
Measures 

FY 2016 
Actual 

FY 2016 
Goal 

February 
 Actual 

FY 2017 
YTD 

Average police response time for priority 
calls for service (Does not include call 
processing time) 

3:41 
 minutes 

4:00 
5:36 

 minutes 
4:05 

 minutes 

Injuries on duty resulting in lost time 4 0 Days Lost 1 1 

Reduce claims filed for property & vehicle 
damage caused by the Police Department 
by 25% 

0 <3 0 2 

Maintain positive relationship with the 
bargaining unit and reduce the number of 
grievances 

4 0% 0 1 

Reduce overtime and improve morale by 
decreasing sick leave usage  

762 days 
10% 

reduction 
9 days 101.5 days 

Track accidents at Harlem and North to 
determine impact of red light cameras 

18 accidents 
10% 

reduction 
2 accidents 18 accidents 

Decrease reported thefts (214 in 2012) 182 
5% 

reduction 
9 167 

Formal Citizen Complaints N/A 0 0 0 

Use of Force Incidents N/A 0 1 5 

Send monthly crime alerts to inform 
residents of crime patterns and prevention 
tips 

10 
1 email/ 

month; 12 
emails/year 

0 8 



3 

 

     

     
Public Works Performance Measures FY 2016 

Actual 
FY 2016 

Goal 
February 

 Actual 
FY 2017 

YTD 

Complete tree trimming/pruning service 
requests within 7 working days  

97% 
  (133 of 137) 

95% 
100% 

  (3 of 3) 
94% 

  (133 of 141) 

Complete service requests for unclogging 
blocked catch basins within 5 working 
days 

100% 
  (15 of 15) 

95% 
N/A 

  (0 of 0) 
100% 

  (13 of 13) 

Percent of hydrants out of service more 
than 10 working days 

0.03% 
  (1 of 3960) 

<1% 
0.00% 

  (0 of 440) 
0.00% 

  (0 of 3960) 

Replace burned out traffic signal bulb 
within 8 hours of notification 

100% 
  (4 of 4) 

99% N/A 
100% 

  (2 of 2) 

Complete service requests for patching 
potholes within 5 working days  

100% 
  (14 of 14) 

95% 
100% 

  (2 of 2) 
100% 

  (9 of 9) 

Repair street lights in-house, or schedule 
contractual repairs, within five working 
days of notification    

92% 
  (68 of 74) 

95% 
100% 

  (8 of 8) 
98% 

  (46 of 47) 

Safety: Not more than two employee 
injuries annually resulting in days off from 
work 

0 ≤2 1 2 

Safety: Not more than one vehicle accident 
annually that was the responsibility of the 
Village 

0 ≤1 0 0 

Televise 2,640 lineal feet of combined 
sewer each month from April – September 

202% 
  (32054 of 

15840) 

2,640/ 
month 

(15,840/ 
year) 

2% 
  (60 of 
2640) 

190% 
  (35031 of 

18480) 

Exercise 25 water system valves per 
month 

71% 
  (213 of 300) 

25/month 
(300/year) 

16% 
  (4 of 25) 

84% 
  (189 of 225) 

Complete first review of grading plans 
within 10 working days 

100% 
(90 of 90) 

95% 
100% 

  (3 of 3) 
100% 

  (73 of 73) 

     N/A: Not applicable, not available, or no service requests were made 
   



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 13, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Village Administrator’s Report 
 ______________________________________________________________________________________  
Upcoming Meetings (all meetings are at Village Hall unless otherwise noted) 
 
Thursday, March 23  7:00 pm  Historic Preservation Commission Meeting (2nd Floor Conference Room) 
Monday, March  27  7:00 pm  Village Board of Trustees Meeting (CANCELLED) 
Tuesday, April 4       6:00 am – 7:00 pm     Election Day (Consolidated General) 
Monday, April 10  6:00 pm  Committee of the Whole Meeting (Budget Presentation) 
Monday, April 10  7:00 pm  Village Board of Trustees Meeting 
Monday, April 24  7:00 pm  Village Board of Trustees Meeting 
 
**Due to improvements being made to the West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch Center (WSCDC), 911 
Operations will be temporarily housed in the Community Room from March 16 through approximately March 29, 
2017.  Any meetings normally scheduled in the Community Room during those dates, will be moved to the 2nd Floor 
Conference Room** 
 
Recent Payments of  >$10,000 
 
In accordance with the purchasing policy, the following is a summary of payments between $10,000 and $20,000 that have 
occurred since the last Board meeting: 
 

Vendor Amount Description 
Card Services $12,758 Conference Room Chairs, Office supplies, dues 
Chicagoland Paving Contractors $14,154 Alley Reconstruction & Commuter Lot 

Improvements 
Community Bank $13,673 Sewer Loan Principal & Interest 
MOE Funds $13,470 PW Employee Health Insurance April 2017 
SHI International Corp $18,246 IT – Replace Dell Drives, Switches for CIP 

Projects 
 

There were no new business licenses issued this month. 
 
Thank you.   



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 9, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Opt Out – Cook County Minimum Wage and Sick Leave Rules 
 ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Analysis: As previously discussed, the Village Board provided direction to investigate and consider 
opting out of the recently adopted Cook County ordinances that create new rules for minimum wage 
and paid sick leave.  Attached please find an ordinance that creates a new Chapter 14 in Title 3 of 
the Village Code that states the Village will follow all applicable federal and state laws as it relates 
to these matters and “opt out” of participating with the County rules.  This recommendation is based 
upon the fact that the Illinois Constitution allows municipalities in Cook County to decide whether 
or not County ordinances, in certain instances, apply within their boundaries. Generally, if a 
municipal ordinance conflicts with a Cook County ordinance, the municipal ordinance applies. 
Section 6(c) of Article VII of the Illinois Constitution provides in this regard: 
 
If a home rule county ordinance conflicts with an ordinance of a municipality, the municipal 
ordinance shall prevail within its jurisdiction. 
 
With a conflict between the County’s rules and the Village’s rules (following State and Federal 
Laws), the Village’s rules would apply.  To be clear, in order to create said conflict, the Village 
Board must vote “yes” to adopt the Ordinance.   
 
Recommendation: Consider a MOTION adopting an ordinance amending Title 3 of the Village 
Code with regard to conflicts with certain home rule ordinances – Cook County Minimum Wage 
and Paid Sick Leave Ordinances. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Attachment 
Ordinance    



 375164_1 1 

 
NO. _____________________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3 OF THE  

RIVER FOREST VILLAGE CODE WITH REGARD TO  
CONFLICTS WITH CERTAIN HOME RULE COUNTY ORDINANCES 

(COOK COUNTY MINIMUM WAGE AND PAID SICK LEAVE ORDINANCES) 
 

         WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (“Village”) is a non-home rule unit of local 
government as provided by Article VII, Section 7 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on October 5, 2016, the County of Cook Board of Commissioners adopted 
Ordinance 16-5768, entitled “An Ordinance Establishing Earned Sick Leave For Employees In 
Cook County,” that requires private employers in Cook County to provide a minimum number of 
paid sick days to employees; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on October 26, 2016, the County of Cook Board of Commissioner adopted 
Ordinance 16-4229, entitled “An Ordinance Creating A Minimum Wage In Cook County,” 
requiring a minimum wage to be paid by private employers in Cook County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 6(c) of the Illinois Constitution provides that if “a 
home rule county ordinance conflicts with an ordinance of a municipality, the municipal 
ordinance shall prevail within its jurisdiction;” and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Village finds that Cook County Ordinances 16-5768 and 16-4229 place 
an undue and unequal burden on employers within the Village given the current requirements for 
employers under Federal and State law, and Cook County Ordinances 16-5768 and 16-4229 
create and contribute to a burdensome patchwork quilt of regulation regarding the wages and 
benefits of employees that is properly a matter of Statewide concern that is outside the power of 
Cook County to regulate; and   
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to its authority under Article VII, Section 6(c) of the Illinois 
Constitution, the Village finds it in the best interest of the Village, Village residents, Village 
employers, and the public’s health, safety and welfare to amend the River Forest Village Code to 
clearly define the sick leave and minimum wage regulations that apply to employers located in 
the Village as being those set forth in State and Federal law; 

 
 NOW, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of 

River Forest, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:  
 

SECTION 1:  That the recitals above shall be and are hereby incorporated in this Section 
1 as if restated herein. 
 
 



 375164_1 2 

         SECTION 2:  That Title 3 of the River Forest Village Code is hereby amended by 
adding a new Chapter 14, entitled “Conflicts With Certain Home Rule County Ordinances,” 
which shall read in its entirety as follows: 
 

“CHAPTER 14 – CONFLICTS WITH CERTAIN HOME RULE COUNTY 
ORDINANCES 

 
 14-1-1: PAYMENT OF MINIMUM HOURLY WAGES AND PAID SICK LEAVE 
 

A. Employers located within the Village shall comply with all 
applicable Federal and/or State laws and regulations as such laws 
and regulations may exist from time to time with regard to both the 
payment of minimum hourly wages and paid sick leave.  Employee 
eligibility for paid sick leave and minimum hourly wages shall be 
in compliance with all applicable Federal and/or State laws and 
regulations as such laws and regulations may exist from time to 
time. 

 
B. No additional obligations with regard to paid sick leave or 

minimum hourly wages imposed by any ordinance adopted by the 
County of Cook Board of Commissioners shall apply to any 
employer located within the Village, the Village opts out of any 
such ordinance(s) adopted by the County of Cook Board of 
Commissioners, and this ordinance of the Village conflicts with 
any such ordinance(s) adopted by the County of Cook Board of 
Commissioners that imposes additional obligations with regard to 
paid sick leave or minimum hourly wages. 

 
C. For the purposes of this Section, the term “employee” means an 

individual permitted to work by an employer regardless of the 
number of persons the employer employs, and the term “employer” 
means any person employing one (1) or more employees, or 
seeking to employ one (1) or more employees, if the person has its 
principal place of business within the Village or does business 
within the Village.  

 
D.   For the purposes of this Section, the term “employer” does not 

mean: 
 

  1.  The government of the United States or a 
corporation wholly owned by the government of the United 
States; 

 
  2.  An Indian tribe or a corporation wholly 

owned by an Indian tribe; 
 



 375164_1 3 

  3. The government of the State or any agency 
or department thereof; or  

  
  4. Any unit of government.” 

 
 SECTION 3: That all ordinances, or parts of ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance, 
are hereby expressly repealed. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Each section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is 
separable, and if any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the unconstitutionality or invalidity of such section, 
paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part 
thereof, other than that part affected by such decision. 
 
 SECTION 5:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 
and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 
 
 

AYES:   ______________________________________________ 
 

 NAYS:   _______________________________________________ 
 
 ABSENT:   _______________________________________________ 
  
 APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2017. 
 

       
 __________________________________ 

    Catherine Adduci, Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
      Sharon Halperin, Village Clerk 
 



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 9, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Consulting Agreement – Lake and Park 
 ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue:  With the desire to reissue a RFP for Lake and Park, Staff is seeking assistance from an 
outside consultant to: 
 

- Reissue the RFP with a fresh and new perspective 
- Work with the development community to understand project feasibility as well as market 

the project 
- Assist the EDC and Village Board with evaluating the responses including, but not limited 

to: cost data, pro forma analysis, and tax revenue projections 
 
Analysis:  The Village sought proposals from three different consultants seeking responses to the 
scope listed above.  The Village received one qualified response from Ehlers and Associates – a 
copy of which is attached for review.  Ehlers is a full service consulting firm that performs work in 
public finance and economic development among others areas of expertise.  In a related project for 
the Village of Clarendon Hills, Ehlers conducted a downtown master plan study that was 
comprehensive and thorough.1 Additionally, the principals working on this project have a nice mix 
of both private and public sector experience.  Ehlers has not previously consulted for the Village of 
River Forest, and considering this redevelopment site has been “stuck in neutral” since 2010, having 
a new perspective is important in the hopes of achieving better results.  Staff recommends the 
Village Board approve the proposal from Ehlers & Associates. 
 
Recommendation:  Consider the attached proposal and a MOTION to waive formal bidding 
procedures and authorize an agreement for Consulting Services with Ehlers and Associates for the 
Redevelopment of Lake Street and Park Avenue Project. 

                                            
1 
http://www.egovlink.com/public_documents300/clarendonhills/published_documents/Clarendon%20Hills%20
Documents/Community%20Development/DTMP/Staff%20Report%2020140821.pdf 
 

http://www.egovlink.com/public_documents300/clarendonhills/published_documents/Clarendon%20Hills%20Documents/Community%20Development/DTMP/Staff%20Report%2020140821.pdf
http://www.egovlink.com/public_documents300/clarendonhills/published_documents/Clarendon%20Hills%20Documents/Community%20Development/DTMP/Staff%20Report%2020140821.pdf


 
Please contact me should you have any questions.  Thank you. 
 
Attachment 
Proposal 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Project Contact: 
Jennifer M. Tammen, Municipal Advisor/Principal 
Phone:  312-638-5263 
Email:  jtammen@ehlers-inc.com 
 
 
 
Other Team Members: 
Maureen Barry, Senior Municipal Advisor/Vice President 

Sid Inman, Senior Municipal Advisor/Vice President 

Mindy Barrett, TIF/BD Coordinator 

  

 
February 27, 2017 
 
Proposal for  
Economic Development Consulting Services 
 
Village of River Forest, Illinois 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page i 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

 

Proposal for  
Economic Development Consulting Services 

 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................... 1 
Qualifications ................................................................................................................. 2 
Scope of Services and Project Approach ....................................................................... 5 
Optional Services ........................................................................................................... 7 
Cost of Services ............................................................................................................. 9 
Similar Projects ............................................................................................................ 10 
Agreement ................................................................................................................... 16 
 
Appendices .................................................................................................................. 17 
Appendix 1:  Resumes .............................................................................................................. 18 

Appendix 2:  Ehlers Economic Development Services .............................................................. 21 

Appendix 3:  Ehlers Services ..................................................................................................... 23 

 
 
 
 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  1 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

 

Proposal for  
Economic Development Consulting Services 

Executive Summary 
The following proposal is provided by Ehlers and Associates, Inc. (Ehlers) in response to a 
request from the Village of River Forest.  It is our understanding that the Village is interested in 
partnering with a consultant to identify a “Developer” (selected developer) to successfully 
redevelop a specific property located at Lake Street & Park Avenue in River Forest.  Ehlers will 
work with the Village to create and issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) to solicit developer 
responses. In addition, Ehlers will analyze each proposal response and make recommendations 
for the redevelopment project.  
 
Ehlers is an independent municipal advisory firm, and Ehlers’ staff has had the pleasure of 
providing service to local governments in the Midwest since 1955.  Over eighty professionals 
serve clients in Illinois, Colorado, Minnesota, and Wisconsin, among other states.  These include 
eight professionals at the Chicago, Illinois office from which the Economic Development 
Consulting Services would be performed.   
 
Ehlers offers a complete range of services for economic development.  This proposal describes 
various services for which the Village may engage Ehlers according to its needs at any time.  Our 
team will work with the Village staff to determine the appropriate steps needed to advance the 
project throughout the process.  Ehlers’ advisors will help the Village to ensure that its interests 
are being protected and to justify to the community any public assistance that may be granted to 
make the project viable. 
 
This document is divided into three main sections.  The first section, Qualifications, describes 
our firm and staff that would be assigned to projects for River Forest and summarizes the 
relevant experience that these team members would bring to the Village of River Forest.  The 
second section, Scope of Services and Project Approach, describes services that may be 
required by the Village.  The last section, Similar Projects, describes redevelopment projects 
which Ehlers has recently completed or are in progress.  Contact information, which may be used 
for references, is provided within this section.  
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  2 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Qualifications 

About Ehlers 
Ehlers is an independent public municipal advisory firm. We have been in business since 1955 
working exclusively for public sector clients throughout Illinois and the Midwest.   
 
Our goal is helping local governments find the financial resources they need to build the 
communities they envision. 
 
Our services are grouped into four main categories, representing our core areas of expertise: 

 Economic Development and Redevelopment 
 Debt Planning & Issuance 
 Financial Planning 
 Strategic Communications 

 
At Ehlers, all employees have ownership in the company and take ownership in serving 
clients.  Ownership sets the tone for the operation of the firm and the nature of the services 
clients receive.  All-employee ownership at Ehlers means: 

 Every Ehlers employee has a vested interest in providing the best possible service. 
 Our focus is on the long-term success of our clients, not solely on short-term profit 

and return on investment. 
 

Our dedication to “how” we deliver our services is as unique and comprehensive as the 
service itself.  We listen to our clients’ needs, maintain highly qualified employees to team 
with them, and present customized options to help decision-makers confidently select the best 
and lowest cost solutions for their citizens. 
 
Ehlers has helped communities to upgrade and improve infrastructure; revitalize deteriorated or 
outmoded commercial areas; attract development to improve job opportunities and the local 
economy; rehabilitate neighborhoods; and bring new development to areas that are impaired by 
market or physical constraints. 

Federal Registration as a Municipal Advisor 
The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Act") enacted on 
July 21, 2010 requires firms/persons who are "Municipal Advisors" to register with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(MSRB).  Generally, a municipal advisor is any person that provides advice to a municipal 
entity or obligated person concerning the timing, terms, structuring or similar matters of a 
municipal security or provides advice with respect to municipal financial products. Municipal 
Advisors have a federal fiduciary duty to represent their municipal entity client’s best interests 
as part of any engagement.   
 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  3 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Ehlers and Associates, Inc. (Ehlers) as a firm and our Municipal Advisors are included within 
the definition of “municipal advisors” and are required to register with the SEC as such.  We 
have registered as a Municipal Advisor with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  
Ehlers Registration No. is 866-00266-00.  Confirmation of Ehlers’ registration can be viewed 
the SEC and MSRB websites.   
 
We are a charter member of the National Association of Municipal Advisors (NAMA) 
(http://www.municipaladvisors.org/).  This professional association is dedicated to high ethical 
standards and is committed to providing independent advice when serving as advisors to 
municipal entity clients. 

Project Team 
Ehlers uses a team approach with Municipal Advisors assisted by research analysts.  One 
Municipal Advisor will have primary responsibility for our work with the Village and will be 
assisted by several other Municipal Advisors and research analysts.  This approach affixes 
responsibility and assures continuity of service for the client from the time the proposal is 
submitted through any follow-up work.  Additionally, it allows a better match of Ehlers' staff 
expertise and experience to the particular needs of the Village.   
 
The staff at Ehlers views ourselves as an extension of the Village’s staff and as part of the 
Village’s team to make sure economic development activities occur in accordance with the 
Village’s expectations.  Work on any River Forest projects would be performed from our 
Chicago, Illinois office, and Ehlers makes every attempt to be available on short notice for 
meetings and conference calls.  We are in constant contact with our clients to make sure their 
needs are being met.  
 
Jennifer Tammen, Municipal Advisor/Principal 
Jennifer will serve as the lead advisor for the City.  Jennifer joined Ehlers in 2014.  Jennifer 
has nearly 17 years of progressive experience and success within the real estate development 
field.  She has represented clients on matters related to zoning and entitlements, planning, 
economic development, TIF, pro forma analysis, deal structuring and developer negotiation, 
and project management.  Prior to joining Ehlers, Jennifer formed and worked for her own 
firm, THE TAMMEN GROUP.  She has also served as Director of Planning for Norwood 
Builders, Inc., as Redevelopment Project Manager for the Village of Oak Park, Illinois, and 
worked as a project associate for S.B. Friedman & Company.  Jennifer has been a key team 
member on a number of projects including TIF eligibility studies, financial feasibility and 
modeling, and redevelopment planning.  Jennifer’s focus is to serve Illinois municipalities in 
the areas of economic incentives analysis, TIF consulting, redevelopment deal structuring and 
special studies to identify solutions to achieve project goals. 
 
Maureen Barry, CIPMA, Senior Municipal Advisor/Vice President 
Maureen joined Ehlers in January 2008.  Prior to that time, she worked in local government for 
over 15 years, most recently as the Assistant Village Manager in Wilmette, and before that, for 
the City of Evanston and the City of Glendale, Arizona.  In these roles, she worked with local 
government leaders and other key players in planning and managing a wide variety of 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  4 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

governmental operations and projects.  Maureen has assisted Ehlers’ clients with economic 
development, financial consulting and municipal debt issuance projects in the City of Danville, 
City of Geneva, City of Macomb, City of North Chicago, Village of Oak Park, City of Peoria, 
City of Rock Island, Village of Tinley Park, Village of Wheeling, and Village of Willowbrook, 
among others. 
 
Sid Inman, Senior Municipal Advisor/Senior Vice President 
Sid has over 30 years of experience in the area of public finance and redevelopment.  He is an 
industry leader in tax increment, developer recruitment and negotiations, pro forma analysis, 
and bond work.  He has participated in over 200 different development projects in 
communities of all sizes.  Sid brings to this project significant experience in conducting 
financial feasibility and pro forma analysis of development projects.  Communities Sid has 
served include the Village of Bradley, Village of Tinley Park, Village of Fox River Grove, 
and Village of Willowbrook, as well as the City of St. Paul, Minnesota and numerous other 
Illinois and Minnesota cities.  
 
Mindy Barrett, TIF/BD Coordinator 
Mindy has been with Ehlers since 2006 and serves as a Tax Increment Financing Coordinator 
in our Chicago office.  She is responsible for assisting in the development and implementation 
of TIF projections and analysis, including gathering data from counties and the state of 
Illinois.  Mindy would be involved in this project, assisting with data research and financial 
modeling. 
 
In addition, the Ehlers Project Team will use expertise and resources from our other offices, if 
necessary, to meet the needs of the Village.  Resumes for Jennifer Tammen, Maureen Barry, and 
Sid Inman are attached in Appendix 1. 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  5 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Scope of Services and Project Approach 
Ehlers offers the following approach to assist the Village in identifying a potential Developer for 
a redevelopment project located at Lake Street & Park Avenue in River Forest.  It is our 
understanding that the site has been considered for a mixed-use development that could 
incorporate both residential and commercial uses.  The site is located at the western end of the 
Village’s Business District, which was established in 2016.  Ehlers will assist the Village in the 
identification of potential development options through a defined process, proposed as follows: 
 
Project Initiation Meeting 
The first step in the process is to meet with the Village Staff to discuss the overall process and 
ensure that Ehlers has a thorough understanding of the Village’s goals for the process. Topics to 
be covered include: 

 Discuss the tasks and timeline of the project. 
 Discuss “Developer Roundtable Steering Committee” participants (we suggest 5-6 

members, from the Village staff, Village Board and EDC). 
 Identify any additional sources of data required to complete our analyses. 

 
Developer Identification & Roundtables 
Ehlers would use its considerable database of contacts in the development community to create a 
list of housing, office, and commercial developers that can provide a current market perspective 
on development feasibility and allow the Village to assess development interest in the property.  
Our recommendation is to allow the development community to give their unbiased feedback on 
the market potential, notwithstanding the recent public discussions on use, height and density. 
 
Ehlers, along with the Village’s Developer Roundtable Steering Committee, will then send 
notices to and conduct meetings with these developers and real estate professionals in an 
informal setting.  Each developer meeting will last approximately one hour (45 minutes with the 
developers and 15 minutes debriefing with staff).  We anticipate hosting two developer meetings.  
The purpose would be to solicit feedback from developers as well as familiarize developers with 
the advantages of each site. 
 
There are several advantages to these types of meetings.  First, this is an opportunity to spread 
the word about the site’s potential to the development community.  The Village would gain 
insight into the current real estate market without being pressured by a developer or broker.  In 
today’s uncertain market, the meetings would offer perspective into the type of tenants that are 
looking to expand their footprint and those tenants’ needs for certain site attributes.  The Village 
would also gain an understanding of how any changes to the infrastructure may help spur 
development.  These meetings can provide an understanding of what the market will support and 
the type and number of tenants that would be interested in the location.  If necessary, the Village 
may wish to have a market study completed by a real estate professional at this time. 
 
Request for Proposal (RFP)  
Ehlers will then prepare a Request for Proposal (RFP) based on information gathered at the 
roundtables, and the market study if one is conducted.  The RFP is sent to a list of qualified 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  6 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

developers with whom Ehlers has experience or knowledge, as well as those identified by the 
Village.  Ehlers will perform the following tasks: 

 Meet with Village staff and with EDC to develop a full understanding of the Village’s 
criteria for the Request for Proposal. 

 Meet with Village administration and Board to discuss any policy-related matters and 
goals for development of the property. 

 Identify and inquire about criteria relevant to the Developer selection. 
 Create the Request for Proposal (RFP) document. 
 Disseminate notice of availability of the RFP to qualified developers, including 

the attendees of the Developer Roundtables. 
 
Developer Selection  
Ehlers will then assist the Village in evaluation of the received proposals, and then provide 
information to the Village as the basis for their selection of the Developer.  Ehlers will perform 
the following tasks for each response: 

 Independently evaluate each developer application, including the developer’s vision and 
concept for the project. 

 Analyze the developer’s project cost data, including significant financial components 
(land, construction and financing cost, projected lease and sale revenues) in the context of 
industry and market standards. 

 Conduct a pro forma analysis of the developer’s estimated total sources (equity and 
financing), uses (project costs), extent of financial gap, and the developer’s initial rate of 
return on investment (IRRI) or the developer’s other measure. We will run the 
developer’s assumptions through our internal financial model and measure against our 
understanding of current market assumptions. 

 Prepare and analyze tax revenue projections.  Our revenue projections will estimate the 
impact of new development to the equalized assessed value (EAV) of the property and 
the expected level of Village revenue, which are derived primarily from property and 
sales taxes.  These projections are used to help determine the amount of tax revenue that 
may be generated by the Project and the overall amount that may be available to fund 
components of the Project and/or other capital projects. 

 Determine the financing gap and amount of public assistance required (if any).  We will 
model the pro forma and gap analysis using the developer’s assumptions to verify 
whether the Project is economically viable without Village financial assistance. 

 Identify potential resources to cover the cost of any required public assistance at a high 
level view.  (More detailed analyses can be conducted as described below under the 
“Optional Services” section.) 

 Prepare a memorandum summarizing the results of the evaluation of the developers’ 
project assumptions and gap analysis, as well as our projections of property and sales 
taxes for discussion with the Village Staff.  Our memorandum will also include a 
discussion of other potential financing methods and tools. The report will be presented to 
Village staff for review and comment.  

 Present our final report and facilitate discussions at a joint Village Board/EDC meeting. 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  7 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Optional Services 
Beyond this proposed Scope of Services, Ehlers is prepared to assist the Village on an hourly 
rate basis with additional economic development services which could be performed in 
conjunction with, or in addition to, the developer selection services described previously.   
 
Developer Negotiation and Agreement Implementation 
Ehlers has extensive experience in negotiating development agreements for a wide range of 
commercial, residential, and mixed-used projects.  Just as critical as experience in this area, is 
the need for a consultant that is independent.  When Ehlers works in a municipality, it works for 
the municipality – not the developer.  Our policy of only working for local governments and our 
fiduciary responsibility as Municipal Advisors means that the Village can be assured that we will 
represent its best interests. 
 
Steps 

 Confirm the Village Board and staff’s redevelopment goals for the property and 
surrounding area(s) in light of the previous process findings. 

 Review public improvement costs required for redevelopment. 
 Review preliminary pro forma findings with the selected Developer.  (This provides an 

opportunity to verify analysis with the Developer and make any final adjustments as 
needed.) 

 Seek input from the Village to develop a Term Sheet to use as a starting point for 
negotiations with the Developer.  Negotiate with the Developer regarding provisions to 
include in the Development Agreement.  Work with Village legal counsel to produce a 
first draft, followed by review of subsequent drafts as amended by others (Village legal 
counsel or the Developer). 

 Work with the Developer and Village officials on a final Development Agreement and 
present for final consideration and vote by Village Board.  This will include consideration 
of a preliminary financial structure for public and private participation in redeveloping 
the subject property. 

 
Ehlers has taken a lead role in many development negotiations, as well as provided feedback on 
redevelopment agreements negotiated by others.  The final agreement is subject to attorney 
approval.  Examples of recommendations Ehlers has made include: 

 Amount, type, and timing of incentives or assistance to developers. 

o Receipt of incentives geared toward performance. 

o Incentives based on goals of municipality. 

 Use of “Look Back” provisions in development agreements, so that if a project is 
more successful than projected, the Developer returns funds to the municipality. 

During and after construction, Ehlers can manage development agreements by determining 
eligible expenses and calculating reimbursements.   

 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  8 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Analyze and Review Alternative Financing Methods  
It is our understanding that current property tax and sales tax revenues are the primary funding 
mechanism being considered for potential Village assistance for the project.  (The Village 
currently has a Business Development District in place, however, a District Sales Tax is not 
being collected.)  However, if the Village would like to get a general understanding of other 
revenue options, Ehlers can also provide the Village with a good sense of any tools that may be 
applicable and available to the Village with respect to the project and related Village capital 
needs.  
 
Village-wide strategies will be evaluated at a high level including other revenue generating tools 
including a home rule sales tax, food and beverage tax, and others.  Access to some of these tools 
may require the Village to consider pursuing the Home Rule designation. 

 
A.  Identify Other Alternative Funding Tools/Revenue Sources   
We will review the projects and project area for potential applicability of funding sources 
including possible opportunities which may benefit the property area according to the 
provisions of Illinois law as it applies to the sources being considered (i.e., a Business 
Development District Sales Tax, a TIF District, an SSA, and/or other funding mechanisms as 
they may apply).  We envision this analysis to be primarily narrative to provide the Village 
with an overall understanding of revenue options that it may wish to explore further as part of 
an amended or separate scope of work. 

 
B.  Review of Debt Capacity  
As a registered Municipal Advisor, Ehlers can review the Village’s existing debt capacity 
and ability to issue debt to support the desired projects, in tandem with the revenue 
generating capacity of any new or amended tools as determined in the previous steps.   

 
Additional information on Ehlers’ Economic Development services is enclosed as Appendix 2.   
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  9 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Cost of Services 
Developer Identification, RFP, and Developer Selection Services 
Ehlers will complete the scope of services outlined for Developer Identification, Request for 
Proposal (RFP) and Developer Selection Services at an hourly fee not-to-exceed price of $25,000 
for review of up to three (3) RFP developer responses.  Should the Village receive more than 
three (3) proposals, Ehlers will charge a flat fee of $2,000 per each additional proposal.  This fee 
covers all Ehlers' services provided within the Scope of Services for these items as described 
above.   
 
If additional services (as described in “Optional Services” section or otherwise) are requested by 
the Village, including services to assist in negotiations regarding requests for municipal 
incentives by the Developer candidate finalist(s), Ehlers will perform the requested services at 
the currently hourly rates:    
 

Senior Municipal Advisor $225/hour 
Municipal Advisor $200/hour 
Financial Specialist I $175/hour 
TIF Coordinator $175/hour 
Clerical Support $100/hour 

 
* The above Hourly Billing Rates are in effect through December 31, 2017, at which time 
these rates will be subject to increase.    

 
Ehlers will charge its hourly rate as specified above for one-way travel to the Client’s location or 
otherwise as may be required. 
 
Ehlers will invoice the Village for the amount due after the completion of each Phase of work.  
The fees are due and payable upon receipt of the invoice by the Village.   
  
The Village and Ehlers may also agree to flat fee compensation for certain projects as needed. 
 
Additional information on Ehlers’ services is enclosed as Appendix 3.   
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  10 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Similar Projects 
The Ehlers Illinois Team has worked successfully throughout Illinois for over 15 years to 
accomplish municipalities’ development and redevelopment goals.  The following summaries 
describe how Ehlers has recently served other Illinois communities.  Contacts for these 
communities may also be used as references.   
 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  11 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

City of Macomb 
The City of Macomb is home to Western Illinois University (WIU).  With the assistance of 
Ehlers, in December 2009 the City adopted a TIF (West Side TIF) that was over 140 acres in size 
and amended an existing TIF (Downtown TIF), which included an extension of that TIF’s term.  
The new TIF includes downtown commercial parcels surrounding the earlier TIF, as well as 
other commercial/retail, light industrial and residential land bordering WIU.  The residential land 
consists of mostly student and lower income rental housing.  Due to the number of residents and 
potential relocations within the project area, a Housing Impact Study was completed.  As a result 
of the TIF, among other things, the City has acquired several dilapidated residential properties 
and purchased right-of-way to implement a street renovation plan to make the area more 
pedestrian friendly.   

 
The amended TIF is in the Downtown area 
and was at the very end of its 23 year term.  
The amendment extended the term of the 
TIF to 35 years, and removed several 
parcels, some of which were then 
incorporated into the new TIF.  The 
amendments also updated the 
Redevelopment Plan for the TIF in other 
ways, such as bringing a revised budget and 
goals for the area in line with the City’s current vision for the area and ensuring the plan’s 
compliance with current TIF law.   

 
Ehlers has worked with the City of Macomb on various other economic development and 
financing initiatives, including a redevelopment agreement and pro forma analysis on a proposed 
project to redevelop a downtown historic hotel property into an assisted living facility.   

Specialized Project Experience 
 TIF district creation in a large area with a mix of land uses 
 Housing Impact Study in economically depressed residential area 
 Redevelopment projects to take advantage of university population and other assets 
 TIF extension and amendment 
 Downtown redevelopment 

Contact: 

Dean Torreson, Interim City Administrator 
232 E. Jackson Street 
Macomb, Illinois 61455 
Phone:  (309) 837-0501 
Email: cityadm@macomb.com 
 
 
 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  12 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

City of Peoria 
The City of Peoria is the oldest community in Illinois with a population of 115,007 (2010 
Census).  It is the second largest metropolitan area in Illinois, and boasts the second most densely 
developed downtown.  In 2013, Ehlers assisted the City with the creation of one new TIF District 
and the amendment of an existing TIF District to spur investment in its Downtown.  
 
An amendment was first made to the Central Business District (CBD) TIF (in Downtown Peoria) 
to remove parcels from the original redevelopment project area (RPA).  Prior to the adoption of 
the amendment, a study of the amended RPA was performed to confirm that the area would have 
achieved TIF qualification at the time of the original study without those parcels.  The CBD TIF 
Redevelopment Plan was then updated to incorporate a new budget, goals, and other items.  The 
amendment also added language to bring the Amended TIF Redevelopment Plan into compliance 
with current TIF Act requirements.   
 
The parcels that were removed from the CBD TIF were then included in the new Downtown 
Conservation TIF.  The Downtown Conservation TIF is the home of Caterpillar, Inc.’s world 
headquarters.  Caterpillar is the world's leading manufacturer of construction and mining 
equipment and diesel and natural gas engines.  The Downtown area has many of the elements 
that attract residents to live in a central business district – historic architecture, proximity to the 
workplace, pedestrian friendly areas, public gathering spaces, and recreational opportunities.  
Yet, while some residential development and redevelopment had taken place, the downtown 
lacks some of the retail amenities residents desire, in addition to other problems to overcome in 
its redevelopment, such as deteriorated buildings and paved areas, building vacancies, and 
needed renovation and demolition of older facilities, which would be too costly to undertake 
without public funding assistance.  The City is in the early stages of using tax increment to help 
make improvements and induce private investment into the area.  
 

Contact: 

Christopher Setti, Assistant City Manager 
419 Fulton Street  
Peoria, IL 61606 
Phone:  (309) 494-8618 
 

 

 

  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  13 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Village of Tinley Park 
The Village of Tinley Park undertook the development of two TIF Districts in 2003.  The focus 
of these TIFs was to redevelop key projects as identified by a downtown strategic plan.  Ehlers 
was hired to assist the Village with TIF District qualification and adoption, redevelopment 
implementation and management, developer RFP, developer negotiations, pro forma analysis, 
and TIF increment projections. 
  
During the TIF District qualification process, the exact boundaries of the TIF Districts became 
an issue.  The Village had made the decision to minimize the number of properties in the TIF 
Districts, believing that this would be beneficial to the local School District.  However, in 
negotiations the School District indicated it was desirous of adding parcels not initially identified 
for the TIF.  Ehlers assisted with the creation of TIF boundaries that would not only increase the 
EAV of the parcels for the School District at the end of the TIF, but encourage a large enough 
redevelopment effort to stimulate additional redevelopment and increase EAV in areas 
surrounding the TIF. 

 
This work has resulted in Tinley Park becoming a major retail, restaurant, and hospitality hub for 
the southern suburbs.  Additionally, the School District’s belief that activity in the TIFs would 
result in redevelopment outside the TIF areas has become reality, as significant rehabilitation and 
renewal of properties in this area has occurred.   

 
Recently, Ehlers worked with the Village to develop and adopt a new TIF District, the Legacy 
TIF, and in 2015 completed work on the Mental Health Center TIF, which includes a 280-acre 
property which was formerly owned and operated by the State of Illinois.  The site is the single-
largest master planning and development opportunity within the Village and in the southwest 
suburban area.  Ehlers also provides TIF increment projections on redevelopment proposals and 
other TIF Consulting and Administration services on an ongoing basis for the Village.  

Specialized Project Experience 
 Downtown Development 
 TIF District Creation 
 TIF Amendments 
 Redevelopment Implementation 
 Public Participation 
 Developer RFP and Negotiations 
 Pro forma Analysis 
 TIF Increment Projections 

Contact: 
David Niemeyer, Village Manager 
Brad L. Bettenhausen, Village Treasurer 
16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 
Phone:  (708) 444-5000      
Email: dniemeyer@tinleypark.org    bbettehnausen@tinleypark.org 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  14 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Village of Wheeling 
The Village of Wheeling is a suburban community located in northwestern Cook County.  The 
Village has experienced tremendous growth, but growth is slowing as the Village becomes built 
out.  Its older developments are starting to experience decline.  Like other communities located 
on the far edges of Cook County, Wheeling’s commercial and industrial development is at a 
disadvantage when more favorable tax rates are in place in close proximity to the community, 
such as in Lake County.   

 
Ehlers has provided the Village with TIF 
Eligibility and Adoption, as well as TIF 
Amendment services in a number of areas.  
In 2008, Ehlers assisted the Village with 
the creation of its Southeast (Industrial 
Lane) TIF, which encompasses the 
Chicago Executive Airport, including a 
number of vacant parcels surrounding the 
airport.  Although there has been limited 
development in the TIF District and the 
need for tax increment financing still 
exists, the economic recession that began 
almost immediately after the TIF was 
adopted caused the equalized assessed 
value (EAV) of the area as a whole to decrease significantly below the base values that were 
established when the TIF was adopted in September, 2008.  This led to a substantial 
diminishment in the TIF revenues generated since that time.  With Ehlers’ assistance, the Village 
determined that its best option was to terminate the TIF and re-establish a new TIF in largely the 
same area, which allowed the Village to re-set the base equalized assessed values at the lower 
levels.  This new TIF, the Southeast-II TIF, was adopted by the Village in July, 2014. 

 
The Village intends that the new TIF will help redevelop the area around and including the 
airport with airport-related uses, as well as retail and office development.  The TIF will also help 
the community improve existing residential areas.  Ehlers continues to assist the Village by 
performing various TIF and economic development studies as needed.   

Contact:  
John Melaniphy, Director of Economic Development 
2 Community Boulevard 
Wheeling, Illinois 60090 
Phone:  (847) 499-9094 
Email:  jmelaniphy@wheelingil.gov  

 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  15 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Village of Rockton 
The Village of Rockton is a small community located in Winnebago County, approximately 15 
miles north of Rockford.  The Village had previously created a TIF to improve an older 
industrial and commercial area in one part of the Village.  Rockton engaged Ehlers in 2008 to 
help the community deal with the redevelopment of a large industrial area along the Iowa, 
Chicago & Eastern Railroad.   This area is the site of an Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) Superfund clean-up assumed by the Beloit Corporation.  While major clean-up was 
undertaken, there are still actions that must be taken as part of the EPA “Reasonable Steps 
Letter.”  EPA and the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) are involved in ongoing 
monitoring and maintenance related to the site.  Likewise, the building itself was a shell, having 
suffered deterioration problems and no longer able to fulfill its use as a manufacturing facility.   

 
In the course of the adoption process, the local school district expressed its opposition to the 
creation of this TIF, fearing the loss of revenue it believed a TIF would cause them.  Ehlers 
worked with the Village to provide factual information about how a TIF would actually impact 
the community, and the Former Beloit Corporation TIF was adopted with the support of most of 
the taxing bodies.  As a result, the Village attracted a chemical company to the building.  TIF 
funds were used on a “pay as you go” basis to off-set the extraordinary environmental 
remediation and utility costs.   The property’s significant environmental and utility issues were 
corrected in a way that never would have occurred if not for the creation of the TIF.  In addition, 
over 200 much needed jobs were created and the company relocated its corporate headquarters to 
a facility outside of the TIF District, benefitting the entire community.   
 
Ehlers recently worked with the Village to create a new TIF District in Rockton’s Downtown as 
well, and a new Business District for the same area. 
 

Contact: 

Dale Adams, Village President 
110 E. Main Street 
Rockton, Illinois 61072 
Phone:  (815) 624-7600 
Email:  adams@rocktonvillage.com 

 
 

  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  16 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Agreement 
 
The Village of River Forest, Illinois hereby accepts the above Proposal for Economic 
Development Consulting Services by its authorized officers, this ____ day of _____________, 
2017.  
 
Attest:   By:         
 
Title:   Title:        
 
 
Please send a copy of the agreement page with original signature to: 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 
525 West Van Buren Street, Suite 450 
Chicago, Illinois 60607 

 
 
This proposal is respectfully submitted by authorized representatives of Ehlers & Associates, 
Inc.: 
 

        
  Jennifer M. Tammen  
 Municipal Advisor/Principal  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  17 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Appendices  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  18 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Appendix 1:  Resumes 
 

 
 

 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  19 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  20 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  21 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Appendix 2:  Ehlers Economic Development Services 
Ehlers offers sophisticated analysis of revenue projections, financial feasibility, and the potential 
impacts of development to the Village and other taxing districts.  

TIF/Business District Feasibility/Eligibility Study 
Preliminary Review/Analysis 
Ehlers can conduct a preliminary eligibility study of the Project Area, assess the Project Area 
eligibility for the establishment of various revenue generating tools, conduct preliminary 
field surveys and data analysis.  If needed, we will review and gather information on each 
parcel within the Project Area, including current EAV as valued by Champaign County, to 
ascertain if the qualifying criteria are present for designation according to the laws governing 
each option being considered.   

Recommendations 
We will then review the findings of the research and analysis described above and provide to 
the Village a summary memo for discussion with the Village Staff.  This review will be 
provided at an overview level consistent with the purposes of this preliminary assessment 
rather than at the level required for use in a formal Eligibility Study or Redevelopment Plan 
as required for a TIF or Business Development District (BD).  Members of the Ehlers Team 
can be available to present the findings of the final memo to the Village Board, or other 
group as directed by Village staff.  If the findings confirm that the area is eligible for TIF or 
BD qualification (either as a new TIF or to be added to an existing TIF), and the Village 
wishes to pursue these actions, then a separate proposal will be submitted for services related 
to developing the reports needed to document the eligibility and redevelopment plans and 
assist with the adoption process. 
 
TIF District Establishment and Amendments.  
Tax increment financing (TIF) serves as the primary economic development finance tool for 
many cities. No one knows TIF better than Ehlers. Ehlers has more experience in the use of tax 
increment financing than any other financial advisory firm.  Ehlers assists with the TIF district 
documents for several dozen communities per year. We provide the "soup to nuts" approach to 
TIF with complete documentation including TIF eligibility and establishment reports, 
amendments, assisting with the adoption processes, TIF reporting, increment projections and 
cash flow analysis.   
 
Business Development Districts 
In Illinois, the Business Development District designation is an important municipal economic 
development tool that provides strategic planning and sales tax financing for both development 
and redevelopment areas.  Ehlers provides a complete range of services for business district 
adoption and implementation.  Key services include: analysis of business district eligibility, 
documentation of eligibility findings, preparing the legally required business district plan, 
analysis of financial feasibility, estimating sales tax revenue potential and facilitating the public 
hearing and review process. 
 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  22 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

TIF Financial Feasibility Study 
Ehlers can provide the necessary financial feasibility study for the construction of Developers 
Notes or for the issuance of bonds.   
 
Review of Taxing District Impact 
As part of negotiations with the overlapping taxing districts on the creation, expansion, or 
extension of a TIF district, the Village may need to provide fiscal impact information to the 
school or other taxing district.  Ehlers can prepare this information on behalf of the Village.  
Ehlers would be prepared to discuss findings with both the Village and the taxing districts to 
assist the Village in its final strategy. 
 
TIF Reports 
Ehlers is available to prepare annual TIF reports or to assist staff in the preparation of these 
reports.  As part of this activity, Ehlers will attend and present reports at the Joint Review 
Board meeting. 
 
Tax Revenue Projections 
Ehlers can provide projections that estimate the impact of new development to the equalized 
assessed value of properties and the expected level of tax revenue.  These projections are used to 
help determine the amount of tax revenue that may be generated by certain development and the 
overall amount that may be available to fund development projects. 
 
Debt Issuance 
Ehlers can assist the community in the issuance of debt to support the economic development 
project, including: 

 Exploration of type of debt that best serves the community. 
 Preparation of Feasibility Study to support the project. 
 Negotiation of debt. 

 
Note:  Ehlers can assist with the issuance of debt, subject to a separate service agreement. 
Fees would depend upon the size and complexity of issue and form of debt. 

 
  



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  23 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Appendix 3:  Ehlers Services 
Ehlers is a full service firm, providing a wide range of financial services designed to help resolve 
issues facing local governments.   

Capital Finance & Debt Issuance 
Capital finance is the foundation of Ehlers' business. The ability to borrow money and to manage 
debt effectively helps local governments fund their capital improvements.  Ehlers consistently 
ranks in the top five nationally for Municipal Advisors in the number of competitive bond sales 
supervised per year. 

Our approach to debt issuance focuses on: 

 A thorough understanding of the capital finance options available to local governments. 

 An issuance process that uses specialization to provide efficient and effective results. 

 Ability to issue bonds and other debt ranging in size from $50,000 to $100,000,000. 

 Good working relationships with other "players" in Illinois public finance, including 
bond counsel, local counsel, rating agencies, bond dealers, and bond insurers. 

Financial Planning Services 
An important planning tool for local governments is the development of a long-term financial 
plan.  Ehlers believes it is useful to combine elements of strategic and financial planning with 
capital and operating projections.  The result provides an enhanced framework for financial 
decisions so administrators and elected officials have the essential information needed to make 
decisions on a timely basis.   

A financial plan should include three basic elements: 

 Spreadsheet with five-to-ten year projection of capital and operating needs. 

 Narrative description of the basis for those needs. 

 Prioritized schedule of actions needed to implement the plan. 

A financial plan differs from a capital improvement plan (CIP).  A CIP generally addresses only 
infrastructure or equipment needs.  A financial plan addresses both operating needs and capital 
needs.  It outlines the funding sources as well. 

Economic Development / Redevelopment 
Local financial resources often play a role in economic development.  Ehlers' staff brings the 
experience gained from participation in hundreds of development projects.  This experience 
covers all forms of development and all types of public participation.  Ehlers helps you assemble 
the pieces of the puzzle:  determining need, assessing risk, evaluating options, and making it 
happen. This may include prioritizing community goals, preparing a financial plan, and 
developing a framework for successful decision-making. Ehlers can also help communities 
assess the cost/benefit of proposed developments by producing cash flow projections and impact 
analyses. 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  24 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

Enterprise Performance and Utility Rate Studies 
Municipalities, park districts, and other local governments own community enterprise operations.  
This form of physical asset includes convention centers, sports arenas, water parks, golf domes, 
fitness centers, water & sewer utilities, and community centers.  Day-to-day operations may be 
entrusted to full-time staff or outsourced to a management company.  In either situation, the 
elected governing board and administration want to be sure that their enterprise is producing 
service and income to the maximum capability.  Ehlers can provide a special evaluation or a 
periodic assessment of your asset.  Our strategic advice will be focused on the best business plan 
and practices for maximum service and income. 

Arbitrage Monitoring Services 
Ehlers offers an array of arbitrage services including arbitrage reporting, assistance with IRS 
inquiries and assistance with implementing post-issuance compliance policies.  Our arbitrage 
personnel have experience in preparing arbitrage reports for complex structures such as variable 
rate issues and advance refundings as well as issues requiring uncommingling, transferred 
proceeds and debt service residual analysis.  We help several issuers each year in responding to 
IRS planned examination letters and questionnaires.  In every instance, the IRS closed the 
examination with no change to the tax-exempt status of the bonds.  IRS Form 8038-G asks 
issuers to check a box if they have written procedures to monitor arbitrage compliance and 
private activity rules.  Our arbitrage personnel can assist with drafting and implementing policies 
that address these concerns.  

Continuing Disclosure 
The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) is placing an emphasis on whether issuers 
are meeting their continuing disclosure obligations and disclosure in general. Ehlers has a 
dedicated disclosure services team that is responsible for ensuring Issuers are compliant with 
SEC regulations. Issuers of municipal securities are required to comply with all continuing 
disclosure obligations enumerated in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement / Certificate / 
Undertaking (CDU) associated with each issue of securities subject to SEC Rule 15c2-
12.   Many Issuers have CDU’s that vary significantly from one CDU to another.  Disclosure 
compliance is a high-risk regulatory requirement that requires specialized expertise and 
knowledge of the changing regulations. With a proprietary software system, and nearly 20 years 
of experience, our continuing disclosure services team at Ehlers has been helping Issuers comply 
with all CDU obligations. 

Paying Agent Services 
Given problems in the industry with bank mergers and reliability of paying agent services, Ehlers 
created a subsidiary corporation called Bond Trust Services Corporation.  We were granted the 
first limited purpose trust in the State for the purpose of establishing our own paying agent 
service.  We are fully integrated with DTC and serve as paying agent for the majority of our 
bond sales.   

Investment Services 
Local governments are challenged daily to balance sound borrowing and investment decisions 
while managing their cash requirements.  Ehlers Investment Partners, an Ehlers affiliate, is a full 



 

   

Proposal for Economic Development Consulting Services  Page  25 
Village of River Forest, Illinois  February 27, 2017 
Ehlers and Associates, Inc. 

service, federally registered, independent investment adviser providing investment advisory 
services to all forms of local governments, helping them balance sound investment decisions and 
manage daily cash flow needs to control costs and keep assets secure with the goal of earning 
competitive returns.   

 

 



Village of River Forest 
Village Administrator’s Office  

400 Park Avenue 
River Forest, IL 60305 

Tel:  708-366-8500 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: March 9, 2017 
 
To: Catherine Adduci, Village President 
 Village Board of Trustees 
 
From: Eric J. Palm, Village Administrator 
 
Subj: Creation of New Joint ETSB 
 ______________________________________________________________________________  
 
Issue: Back in 2015, the State of Illinois adopted legislation requiring municipalities under 25,000 
inhabitants to join a consolidated dispatch center for 911 services.  In addition to dispatch services, 
local emergency telephone system boards, or ETSB, are also required to consolidate.  This Board 
action will authorize the Village of River Forest to participate in a joint ETSB and dissolve our 
existing individual ETSB. 
 
Analysis:  ETSB’s were established around the same time as 911 centers and were a vehicle by 
which to pass through wireline and later wireless 911 fees.  River Forest is an individual entity 
ETSB and operates in more of a “paper” fashion with all of our fees deposited into the general fund 
and used to offset our contribution for WSCDC.  The Fire Chief oversees the ETSB and handles all 
the reporting to the State on an annual basis. 
 
With the recent law change, the Village was mandated under state law to combine with other 
municipalities to form a joint ETSB.  With WSCDC already in place, it made the most sense to join 
with the other members to form a new joint ETSB.  Thus, a new joint ETSB of River Forest, Oak 
Park, Elmwood Park, Park Ridge and Forest Park will be created.  Attached is a copy of the bylaws 
that establish the ETSB and were approved by the WSCDC Board of Directors this week.  The main 
purpose of the ETSB will be to receive the 911 funding from the State which will be used to offset 
our membership dues.  The net result should be zero.  Revenue will go directly to the ETSB, but our 
dues will also decrease at the same proportion.  For the FY 2018 budget, Staff left the full revenue 
and expense in the budget as we were not 100% sure when the change would be approved the State 
911 Director.  Again, there is no budget impact by the creation of a joint ETSB. 
 
Recommendation:  Consider a MOTION establishing a joint Emergency Telephone Systems 
Board and authorize the dissolution of the River Forest ETSB.  A copy of the ordinance is attached 
for your review. 
 
Please contact with any questions or concerns.  Thank you. 



 
Attachments 
Ordinance 
Joint ETSB By-laws 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-XX 

 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PARTICIPATION IN THE WEST 
SUBURBAN CONSOLIDATED 9-1-1 SYSTEM JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE 

SYSTEM BOARD AND DISSOLUTION THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST  
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD  

WHEREAS, the Village of River Forest (the “Village” or “River Forest”) has 
established and operated an Emergency Telephone System Board (“ETSB”) pursuant to Section 
15.4 of the Emergency Telephone System Act (50 ILCS 750/15.4) and Ordinance 2409 (adopted 
December 11, 1990); and 

 WHEREAS, the Emergency Telephone System Act (50 ILCS 750/1 et seq.), the 
Wireless Emergency Telephone Safety Act (50 ILCS 751/1 et seq.) and the Prepaid Wireless 9-
1-1 Surcharge Act (50 ILCS 753/1 et seq.) authorize the collection of certain surcharges to assist 
municipalities with the delivery of 9-1-1 services and wireless E-9-1-1 services (collectively 
referred to as “surcharges” or “surcharge funds”). The Village receives statutorily authorized 
surcharges and the Village’s ETSB expends such surcharge funds in accordance with the 
applicable state laws; and 

WHEREAS, Section 15.4 of the Emergency Telephone System Act (50 ILCS 750/15.4), 
as amended by Public Act 99-006 (effective July 2, 2015), authorizes two or more municipalities 
that impose a surcharge pursuant to 50 ILCS 750/15.3 to establish by intergovernmental 
agreement a “Joint Emergency Telephone System Board” (“JETS Board”), provided that the 
local emergency telephone system boards are terminated by ordinances that rescind their 
establishment, authority and operational functions; and 

 WHEREAS, the corporate authorities of the Village of Oak Park (“Oak Park”), the 
Village of Elmwood Park (“Elmwood Park”), the City of Park Ridge (“Park Ridge”), and the 
Village of Forest Park (“Forest Park”), and the Village (collectively referred to as the 
“Participating Agencies” or “Villages”) comprise the West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch 
Center (“WSCDC”) which was formed by intergovernmental agreement on December 15, 1999 
for the operation and maintenance of a centralized, combined emergency services dispatch and 
communication system that includes 9-1-1 services and wireless E-9-1-1 services (the “System”) 
pursuant to Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the Illinois 
Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), the Emergency Telephone System 
Act (50 ILCS 750/1 et seq.), the Wireless Emergency Telephone Safety Act (50 ILCS 751/1 et 
seq.), the Prepaid Wireless 9-1-1 Surcharge Act (50 ILCS 753/1 et seq.), Section 11-5.3-1 of the 
Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-5.3-1), the Department of State Police Law (20 ILCS 
2605-52 (Office of Statewide 9-1-1 Administrator)) and the applicable provisions of the Illinois 
Administrative Code (83 Ill. Admin. Code. § 725.200(i)) (the “Intergovernmental Agreement”); 
and 

 WHEREAS, each of the participating members of WSCDC wish to create a new ETSB 
which includes Oak Park, Elmwood Park, Park Ridge, Forest Park and River Forest and that 
members of the WSCDC’s Operating Board shall also serve as the members of WSCDC’s Joint 



Emergency Telephone System Board (“WSCDC JETS Board”), as provided for under the 
Emergency Telephone System Act (50 ILCS 750/1 et seq.); and 

WHEREAS, the River Forest Joint Emergency Telephone System Board will terminate 
the establishment, authority and operational functions, subject to two conditions: (1) the use by 
the Village, in its own discretion, of any of its remaining surcharge funds to pay for budgeted 
items or obligations that exist; and (2) the termination of its local ETSB will be effective only 
upon the regulatory approval of the WSCDC’s JETS Board by the 9-1-1 Administrator of the 
Illinois Department of State Police; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted to the Village by the applicable 
provisions of the Article VII, Section 10 of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, the 
Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), the Emergency Telephone 
System Act (50 ILCS 750/1 et seq.), the Wireless Emergency Telephone Safety Act (50 ILCS 
751/1 et seq.), the Prepaid Wireless 9-1-1 Surcharge Act (50 ILCS 753/1 et seq.), Section 11-5.3-
1 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/11-5.3-1), the Department of State Police Law (20 
ILCS 2605-52 (Office of Statewide 9-1-1 Administrator)) and the applicable provisions of the 
Illinois Administrative Code (83 Ill. Admin. Code. § 725.200(i)), the President and Board of 
Trustees of the Village of River Forest find that this action is in the best interests of and for the 
protection of the health, welfare and safety of the Village, its residents and the public.   

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF RIVER FOREST, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 SECTION 1:   The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof. 

 SECTION 2:   This Ordinance shall become effective and enforceable only upon the 
regulatory approval of the WSCDC JETS Board by the 9-1-1 Administrator of the Illinois 
Department of State Police.  

            SECTION 3:  The Village Administrator or his designee is authorized to represent the 
Village at the WSCDC JETS Board.  

            SECTION 4:  Any ordinance, or portion thereof, in conflict herewith is repealed to the 
extent of such conflict.  

            SECTION 5:  Each section, paragraph, clause and provision of this Ordinance is 
separable, and if any provision is held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such decision 
shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance, nor any part thereof, other than that part affected 
by such decision. 

             SECTION 6:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, 
approval and publication as provided by State law. 



AYES:   ______________________________________________ 

 NAYS:   _______________________________________________ 

 ABSENT:   _______________________________________________ 

 APPROVED by me this 13th day of March, 2017. 

     
 __________________________________ 

    Catherine Adduci, Village President 
ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 
      Sharon Halperin, Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BY-LAWS 
 
 

For the 
 

WEST SUBURBAN CONSOLIDATED 9-1-1 SYSTEM 
 

JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Approved and Adopted 
     By the Joint Emergency Telephone System Board 

TBD 
 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 2     
 

BY-LAWS 
 
 

For the 
 

WEST SUBURBAN CONSOLIDATED 9-1-1 SYSTEM 
 

JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 1 
 
ARTICLE II. MEMBERSHIP 1 
 
ARTICLE III. JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD  2 
 
ARTICLE IV. EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND 6 
 
ARTICLE V. FISCAL YEAR/BUDGET/PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 7 
 
ARTICLE VI. AUDIT 8 
 
ARTICLE VII. WITHDRAWAL, TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION 9 
 
ARTICLE VIII. INDEMNIFICATION  10 
 
ARTICLE IX. PROPERTY  11 
 
ARTICLE X. AMENDMENT TO THE BY-LAWS 11 
 
ARTICLE XI. EFFECTIVE DATE 12 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 1     
 

BY-LAWS 
 
 

For the 
 

WEST SUBURBAN CONSOLIDATED 9-1-1 SYSTEM 
 

JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD 
 

 
ARTICLE I.     PURPOSE 

 
The West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System (hereafter the “9-1-1 System”) is a 
cooperative venture voluntarily established by its members pursuant to the West 
Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System Intergovernmental Agreement (hereafter the 
“Agreement”) entered into by them in accordance with the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq. and the Emergency Telephone System Act, 50 
ILCS 750/1 et seq. as each may be amended from time to time.  The 9-1-1 System has 
been established for the purpose of providing the equipment, services, personnel, 
facilities and other items necessary for the implementation, operation, maintenance and 
repair of a 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System within  Cook County, Illinois. 
 

ARTICLE II.     MEMBERSHIP 
 
A. The members of the 9-1-1 System are the Villages of Oak Park, River Forest, 

Elmwood Park, Forest Park, and the City of Park Ridge pursuant to the 
Agreement (hereinafter, individually, a “Member Municipality” or collectively, 
“Member Municipalities”). 

 
B. Any unit of government which hereafter becomes a full participating member of 

the West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch Center may also become a Member 
Municipality of the 9-1-1 System, provided all current members agree and 
provided all current members and the new Member Municipality sign an 
addendum (hereinafter, the “Addendum), regarding the new member’s 
participation in the West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System Intergovernmental 
Agreement. 

 
C. The Addendum authorizing a new Member Municipality of the 9-1-1 System shall 

require the new Member Municipality to: 
 

1. Provide funds for its proportionate share of the costs of operations of the 
9-1-1 System; 

 
2. Provide all necessary funds required to add or modify hardware and/or 

software in order to accommodate the operational needs of the new 
member.  Each new Member Municipality shall also be expected to pay a 
proportionate share of normal 9-1-1 System operating expenses; 

 
3. Provide written acceptance obligating itself for its proportionate share of 

the existing debts and liabilities of the 9-1-1 System; and 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 2     
 

4. Deliver to the Joint Emergency Telephone System Board for the 9-1-1 
System a duly certified ordinance in proper form authorizing and directing 
such member’s execution of the Addendum and the written acceptance of 
existing debts referred to in C.3. above, and its agreement to be bound by 
the Agreement and these By-Laws. 

 
 

ARTICLE III.     JOINT EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM BOARD 
 
A. Powers 
 
 The Joint Emergency Telephone System Board for the 9-1-1 System created 

pursuant to the Agreement shall consist of a Board of Directors (hereinafter the “ 
9-1-1 System Board”) made up of the Chief Administrative Officer of each 
Member Municipality and the Executive Director of the 9-1-1 System.  The 9-1-1 
System Board shall have the following powers and duties: 

 
1. All powers authorized by Section 15.4(b) of the Emergency Telephone 

System Act, 50 ILCS 750/15.4(b), as amended from time to time. 
 
2. Planning the 9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System (hereafter the “9-1-1 

System”), as that term is defined in the Emergency Telephone System 
Act; 

 
3. Coordinating and supervising the implementation, upgrading, 

maintenance, repair, and operation of the 9-1-1 System including the 
establishment of equipment specifications and coding systems; 

 
4. Receiving monies from the surcharge imposed under Section 15.3 of the 

Emergency Telephone System Act 50 ILCS 750/15.3, as amended from 
time to time, and from any other source, for deposit into the Fund, as 
defined in Section IV. A. below; 

 
5. Authorizing all disbursements from the Fund (as hereinafter defined) by 

resolutions approved by a majority of all 9-1-1 System Board members; 
 
6. Hiring, on a temporary or permanent basis, any staff necessary for the 

operation or upgrade of the 9-1-1 System; 
 
7. Making and entering into contracts; 
 
8. Acquiring, holding and disposing of property; 
 
9. Incurring debts, liabilities or obligations in accordance with applicable law 

as necessary for the accomplishment of the purposes of the 9-1-1 
System; 

 
10. Purchasing and leasing necessary equipment; and 
 
11. Exercising all powers necessary and incidental to carrying out the 

purposes set forth in Article I of these By-Laws including but not limited 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 3     
 

to, hiring auditors and attorneys, approving amendments to these By-
Laws, accepting new members, approving the annual budget of the 9-1-1 
System, and determining the general policy of the 9-1-1 System, provided 
however, that such policy shall never be inconsistent with the laws of the 
State of Illinois. 

 
B. Organization 
 
 1. Each member of the 9-1-1 System Board shall be entitled to one (1) vote. 
 
 2. Proxy or absentee voting is not allowed.  However, each Member 

Municipality may designate a person to serve in his or her absence at 
regular and special meetings with the authority to vote on behalf of such 
absent Board member.  The person designated by a member of the 9-1-1 
System Board shall be either a police or fire chief or a member of the 
command staff for either department of such Member Municipality.  

 
 3.  The rules of order and parliamentary procedure found in the current 

edition of Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of the 9-1-1 
System Board meetings unless they have been superseded, in whole or 
in part, by action of the 9-1-1 System Board.  

 
 4. If any member of the 9-1-1 System Board ceases to be an official or 

employee of their respective municipality or, in the case of the 9-1-1 
System, its Executive Director, such seat on the 9-1-1 System Board shall 
be vacant until a successor is duly appointed. 

 
 5. Members of the 9-1-1 System Board shall serve on the 9-1-1 System 

Board without salary, but each may be reimbursed for necessary and 
reasonable expenses incurred in connection with 9-1-1 System business. 

 
C. Meetings 
 
 1. Regular meetings of the System Board shall be held on a schedule as 

determined by the 9-1-1 System Board and held in the posted location on 
the meeting notice. At least five (5) days prior to each such meeting, the 
Executive Director of the 9-1-1 System shall cause an agenda for such 
meetings to be sent to each of the other 9-1-1 System Board members 
and posted at the location of the meeting. All notices shall be sent to any 
media outlet which has filed an annual request for notice.   

 
2. A special meeting of the 9-1-1 System Board may be called by its Chair 

or by any two (2) members of the 9-1-1 System Board as follows: 
 

a) No less than forty-eight (48) hours written notice of special 
meetings shall be given to each member of the 9-1-1 System 
Board, which notice shall include an agenda specifying the 
subjects of such special meeting. 

 
b) Business discussed and conducted at said special meeting shall 

be limited to those items specified in the agenda. 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 4     
 

 
c) Notwithstanding a) above an emergency meeting may be called 

without forty-eight (48) hours’ written notice if a majority of the 9-1-
1 System Board members agree, but written notice of such 
meeting shall be provided to all 9-1-1 System Board members as 
soon as practicable, along with the subject matter of such 
emergency meeting. 

d) All notices for special and emergency meetings shall be sent to 
any media outlet which has filed an annual request for notice.  

 
3. Unless otherwise specified in these By-Laws, a quorum for the 

transaction of all business by the Board shall consist of a majority of the 
9-1-1 System Board members. 

 
4. Except to the extent that these By-Laws or any rules adopted by the 9-1-1 

System Board impose a stricter requirement, all meetings of the 9-1-1 
System Board shall comply with the requirements of the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/1 et seq. as amended from time to time.   

 
5. To the extent not contrary to these By-Laws, Robert’s Rules or Order 

shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the 9-1-1 System Board. 
 

D. Officers of the 9-1-1 System Board 
 
 Officers of the 9-1-1 System Board of Directors shall consist of a Chair, a Vice 

Chair, a Secretary and a Treasurer.  The Chair and Vice Chair shall be elected 
each year from among the membership of the 9-1-1 System Board at the March 
meeting.  The Treasurer, who shall be the Treasurer, Finance Director or other 
similar job title of one (1) of the Member Municipalities pursuant to Section 15.4 
(c) of the Emergency Telephone System Act, 50 ILCS 750/15.4(c) as amended, 
shall be appointed by the 9-1-1 System Board. The 9-1-1 System Executive 
Director shall serve as Secretary if another person is not so appointed by the 9-1-
1 System Board. The Chair and Vice Chair shall hold office for a term of one (1) 
year and the Treasurer shall hold office for a term of four (4) years. The 
Secretary shall serve until a successor is appointed.  The Chair and the Vice 
Chair may be re-elected for successive terms.  Newly elected officers shall 
assume their office in January of each year. 

  
 1. Chair 
 
  The Chair shall: 
 

a) Conduct meetings of the 9-1-1 System Board. 
 
b) Sign or co-sign with the Treasurer any instruments, which the        

9-1-1 System Board has authorized to be executed. 
 
c) Perform all duties incident to the office of Chair and such other 

duties as may be prescribed by the 9-1-1 System Board from time 
to time provided that such other duties are consistent with these 
By-Laws, the Agreement and applicable laws, including the 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 5     
 

applicable Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Commerce 
Commission or the Office of the Illinois State Police 9-1-1 
Statewide Administrator. 

 
2. Vice Chair 
 
 In the event of the absence of the Chair, or in the event of the Chair’s 

inability or refusal to act, the Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of Chair 
until such time as the Chair again undertakes to perform the duties of his 
office. 
 

3. Secretary 
 
 The Secretary shall: 
 

a) Keep the minutes of the 9-1-1 System Board. 
 
b) See that all notices are duly made, given and/or published in 

accordance with the provision of these By-Laws or as required by 
law. 

 
c) Act as custodian of the records and the Freedom of Information 

Act Officer of the 9-1-1 System. 
 
d) Perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such 

other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by 
the 9-1-1 System Board. 

 
4. Treasurer 
 
 In accordance with 50 ILCS 750/15.4(c) of the Emergency Telephone 

System Act, as amended, the Treasurer shall at all times be the actual 
treasurer of one of the 9-1-1 System Member Municipalities. 

 
 The Treasurer shall: 
 

a) Receive and act as custodian and be responsible for all funds 
generated through a surcharge on telephone in-service network 
connections within the jurisdictions of the Member Municipalities 
as well as any other funds generated in support of the 9-1-1 
System, which may be placed into the Fund.  

 
b) Dispense funds from the Fund and any other 9-1-1 System Funds 

only in accordance with Illinois law and these By-Laws. 
 
c)  Perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such 

other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the 9-
1-1 System Board. 

 
d) The Treasurer shall give bond in the amount of One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000.00) for the faithful discharge of his or her duties, with 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 6     
 

such surety or sureties as the Board shall determine.  The bond 
premium shall be paid by the   9-1-1 System Board. 

 
e) The Treasurer shall not have a vote on the 9-1-1 System Board 

and shall not be entitled to any compensation for services 
rendered as Treasurer. 

 
 

ARTICLE IV.     EMERGENCY TELEPHONE SYSTEM FUND 
 
A. There shall be created an Emergency Telephone System Fund (hereafter the 

“Fund”) into which all monies received by the 9-1-1 System, including those 
received pursuant to a 9-1-1 surcharge (hereinafter the “Surcharge Funds”) shall 
be deposited. 

 
B. The Treasurer of the 9-1-1 System shall be custodian of the Fund. 
 
C. Surcharge Funds collected shall be segregated, allocated and recorded 

separately for each Member Municipality, in the same proportion that would have 
been received by such Member Municipality based on CY 16 call data. These 
allocations shall include any surcharge amounts contributed by a Member 
Municipality at the time of joining the 9-1-1 System. (For example, Surcharge 
Funds generated on behalf of the Village of Elmwood Park shall be segregated 
and allocated for use, as directed by the member of the Board representing the 
Village of Elmwood Park.) Should the Statewide 9-1-1 Administrator provide data 
relative to each Member Municipalities’ surcharge funds, then that data shall be 
used to determine the allocation of surcharge funds.  

 
D. All interest accruing on the Fund shall remain in the Fund, and shall be allocated 

amongst each Member Municipality in the same manner as set forth in 
Paragraph C above for Surcharge Funds.  

 
E. No expenditures may be made from the Fund except pursuant to resolutions 

approved from time to time by a majority of the members of the 9-1-1 System 
Board.   Any Resolution of the 9-1-1 System Board, which approves an annual 
budget, shall be deemed an approval of the expenditure of money from the fund 
required to pay the amounts specified in the budget. However, the 9-1-1 System 
Board shall be required to approve any expenditures from the segregated 
Surcharge Funds of a Member Municipality, upon the recommendation of the 
voting member of the 9-1-1 System Board for said Municipality, provided that 
such expenditures are in compliance with paragraph F following.  

 
F. Expenditures may be made only to pay for the costs associated with the 9-1-1 

System as follows and in accordance with the law, including 50 ILCS 750/15.4(c), 
as amended from time to time: 

 
1. The design of the 9-1-1 System. 
 
2. The coding of an initial Master Street Address Guide database, and 

update and maintenance thereof. 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 7     
 

3. The repayment of any monies advanced for the implementation of the 9-
1-1 System. 

 
4. The charges for Automatic Number Identification and Automatic Location 

Identification equipment, a computer aided dispatch system that records, 
maintains, and integrates information, mobile data transmitters equipped 
with automatic vehicle locators, and maintenance, replacement, and 
update thereof to increase operational efficiency and improve the 
provision of emergency services. 

 
5. The non-recurring charges related to installation of the Emergency 

Telephone System and the ongoing network charges. 
 
6. The acquisition and installation, or the reimbursement of costs therefor to 

other governmental bodies that have incurred those costs, of road or 
street signs that are essential to the implementation of the emergency 
telephone system and that are not duplicative of signs that are the 
responsibility of the jurisdiction charged with maintaining road and street 
signs. 

 
7. Other products and services necessary for the implementation, upgrade, 

maintenance, and repair of the System and any other purpose related to 
the operation of the System, including costs attributable directly to the 
construction, leasing or maintenance of any buildings or facilities or costs 
of personnel attributable directly to the operation of the West Suburban 
Consolidated 9-1-1 System Primary Public Safety Answering Point 
(PSAP).  Costs attributable directly to the operation of the Emergency 
Telephone System do not include the costs of public safety agency 
personnel who are and equipment that is dispatched in response to an 
emergency call.  

 
8. The defraying of expenses incurred to implement Next Generation 9-1-1, 

subject to the conditions set forth in the Emergency Telephone System 
Act, as amended from time to time.  

 
9. The implementation of a computer aided dispatch system or hosted 

supplemental 9-1-1 services. 
 
10. The design, implementation, operation, maintenance, or upgrade of 

wireless 9-1-1 or E9-1-1 emergency services and public safety answering 
points. 

 
 

ARTICLE V.     FISCAL YEAR/BUDGET/PURCHASES/CONTRACTS 
 
A. Fiscal Year 
 

The fiscal year of the 9-1-1 System shall commence on January 1st and end on 
December 31st of each year. 

 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 8     
 

 
 
B. Budget 
 

1. No later than September 1st of each fiscal year, the 9-1-1 System 
Executive Director shall prepare a proposed budget for the succeeding 
fiscal year and distribute it to the 9-1-1 System Board. 

 
2. The 9-1-1 System Board shall review, modify and/or approve a final 

budget at a meeting held three (3) months before the beginning of the 
fiscal year. 

 
3. A complete copy of the approved final budget shall be furnished within 

forty-five (45) days to each 9-1-1 System Board member. 
 
4. After approval of the annual budget by the 9-1-1 System Board, all 

expenditures shall be made in accordance with the budget. 
 

a) The Executive Director of the West Suburban Consolidated 
Dispatch Center (WSCDC) is hereby granted authority to 
administer the 9-1-1 budget on behalf of the 9-1-1 System Board. 

 
b) The Executive Director shall have the authority to transfer 

contingency funds within the total budget amount in order to meet 
unanticipated needs of the System or to meet changed situations. 

 
c) Such action of the WSCDC Executive Director shall be reported to 

the 9-1-1 System Board as a supplement to the Director’s bi-
monthly report. 

 
C. Purchases/Contract Letting 
 
 Purchases and/or letting of contracts shall be in accordance with the applicable 

law and procedural guidelines established by Resolution of the 9-1-1 System 
Board. The 9-1-1 System Board may enter into a contractual agreement with the 
West Suburban Consolidated Dispatch System for the on-going operations of the 
9-1-1 Emergency Telephone System and make appropriate arrangements for the 
reimbursement of allowable costs incurred by WSCDC on behalf of the 9-1-1 
System. 

 
 

ARTICLE VI.     AUDIT 
 
A. Within six (6) months after the end of each 9-1-1 System fiscal year, the 9-1-1 

System Board shall cause an annual audit of the financial affairs of the 9-1-1 
System, to be prepared by a Certified Public Accountant in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing principles. 

 
B. An original copy of the annual audit report shall be delivered to the Director of 

Finance, Chief Financial Officer or Treasurer, as may be applicable, of each 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 9     
 

Member Municipality, and filed with other public officers in accordance with 
applicable laws. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE VII. WITHDRAWAL, TERMINATION AND DISSOLUTION 

 
A. Any Member Municipality may withdraw from the 9-1-1 System subject to the 

provisions of this Article. 
 

1. Such withdrawing Member Municipality shall give written notice of one (1) 
year or more of withdrawal in the form of a certified copy of an ordinance 
adopted by its corporate authorities, which must be delivered to the 9-1-1 
System Director at the 9-1-1 System’s Headquarters (currently located at 
400 Park Avenue, River Forest, Illinois 60305).  The written notice of 
withdrawal shall be deemed received when the written notice is actually 
received by the 9-1-1 System, either by personal delivery or by United 
Stated certified mail – return receipt requested.  Any other means of 
delivery other than personal delivery or United Stated certified mail – 
return receipt requested shall be deemed a nullity and considered as not 
having been received by the 9-1-1 System. 

 
2. Withdrawal must be in compliance with all applicable rules or 

requirements of Illinois law, the Illinois Commerce Commission, the 
Illinois Department of State Police, the Agreement and these By-Laws. 

 
3. A withdrawing Member Municipality must make appropriate notice, as 

established by the 9-1-1 System Board, to the media and to all mutual aid 
responders of the change in the emergency call handling agreements. 

 
4. Refusal or declination of any Member Municipality to be bound by any 

obligation of the 9-1-1 System or its 9-1-1 System Board shall grant the 9-
1-1 System Board the power to issue such Member Municipality notice of 
removal. Such removal shall not result in the release of any liabilities or 
obligations of such Member Municipality which accrued prior to the 
effective date of removal. 

 
5. The withdrawing Member Municipality shall forfeit any and all interest, 

right and title to 9-1-1 System property, real, personal or mixed. 
 
6. The withdrawing Member Municipality shall be liable for all costs incurred 

by the 9-1-1 System as a result of the Member Municipality’s separation 
and withdrawal.  This may include, but is not necessarily limited to, legal 
fees, court costs and interest on late payment of obligations. 

 
B. Upon receipt of any such notice of withdrawal: 
 

1. Withdrawal shall take effect on the date one (1) year from date of receipt 
of such written notification. 

 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 10     
 

2. After notice of withdrawal and after the effective date of withdrawal, the 
withdrawing Member Municipality shall continue to be responsible for: 

 
a) One hundred (100%) percent of its pro rata share of any current 

unpaid obligations to the effective date of withdrawal. 
 
b) One hundred (100%) percent of its pro rata share of any 

contractual or lease obligations of the 9-1-1 System which were 
incurred during the period the municipality was a member or which 
were assumed during its membership. 

 
c) For any contractual obligations that the withdrawing Member 

Municipality has separately entered with or on behalf of the 9-1-1 
System. 

 
d) The term “pro rata share” as used in this Article VII shall mean a 

percentage of all the 9-1-1 System’s, costs which include but are 
not limited to those costs identified in B.2.a) and B.2.b) set out 
above. 

 
 The percentage shall be computed based on the call volume of 

the Member Municipality taken as a percentage of the total call 
volume for the last complete calendar month preceding the 
withdrawing Member Municipality’s effective date of withdrawal. 

 
C. Upon the majority vote of all of the then-current Member Municipalities of the 9-1-

1 System, and in compliance with any applicable Illinois law, the rules and 
regulations of the Illinois Commerce Commission, the Illinois Department of State 
Police, the Agreement, and these By-Laws, the 9-1-1 System shall be terminated 
and dissolved. 

 
1. Upon such termination and dissolution (and after payment of all debts), all 

individual files and documentation shall be distributed to the appropriate 
Member Municipality without charge or offset. 

 
2. The remaining assets or liabilities of the 9-1-1 System shall be distributed 

among the Member Municipalities which had participated in the 9-1-1 
System within the one (1) year prior to such mandatory dissolution, in 
proportion to each Member Municipality’s mean average of its regular and 
special assessment payments for the preceding three (3) fiscal years, (or 
fraction thereof if any particular Member Municipality shall not have 
belonged for a full three years), bears to the total of such payments for 
the preceding three (3) fiscal years, or fraction thereof as provided above. 

 
 

ARTICLE VIII.      INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. Each Member Municipality which is subject to a claim, of any nature, which 

arises as a consequence of the acts or omissions of such Member Municipality’s 
personnel in responding to, or providing emergency services pursuant to a 
dispatch via the 9-1-1 System (hereinafter “Claim”) shall, at such Member 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 11     
 

Municipality’s sole expense, indemnify and save free and harmless any other 
Member Municipality, and its officers, employees and agents from any cost, 
expense attorney fees, judgment or liability of any nature when any other 
Member Municipality is/are subject to the same Claim solely as a consequence 
of such other Member Municipality being a member of this 9-1-1 System. 

 
 Additionally, in the event the 9-1-1 System and/or its directors, officers, 

employees and agents are subject to a Claim of any nature which arises as a 
consequence of the acts or omissions of Member Municipality’s personnel in 
responding to or providing emergency services pursuant to a dispatch by the 9-1-
1 System such Member Municipality shall at its sole expense, indemnify and 
save free and harmless from any cost, expense, attorney fees, judgments or 
liability of any nature, the 9-1-1 System and/or its officers, directors, employees 
and agents unless it is determined that the officers, directors, employees and/or 
agents of the 9-1-1 System acted in a willful and wanton manner in connection 
with dispatching the personnel of the Member Municipality. 

 
 Nothing in this Section A shall constitute a waiver of any defenses or immunities 

available by statute or common law. 
 
B. In the event that any Member Municipality should file suit or an action against the 

9-1-1 System, all representatives of that Member Municipality shall be prohibited 
from attending any meetings or discussions or having access to the results of 
such meetings related to the defense of the suit or action.  The Member 
Municipality’s representatives shall have no direct access to any written 
communication concerning the matter to which the 9-1-1 System is a party, 
except by legal process; and no representative of the Member Municipality shall 
be allowed to vote on any issue related to the suit or action. 

 
C.  
 Additionally, in the event any member is subject to a claim, of any nature, which 

arises as a consequence of the means and methods by which dispatch services 
were provided by the 9-1-1 System, the 9-1-1 System shall indemnify and save 
free and harmless from any cost, expense, attorney fees, judgments or liability of 
any nature the member and/or its officers, directors, employees and agents 
unless it is determined that the officers, directors, employees and/or agents of 
the member acted in a manner not subject to the immunity protections afforded 
by law in connection with dispatching the personnel of the member. 

 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE IX.     PROPERTY 
 
All property acquired by the 9-1-1 System shall be owned by it for and on behalf of its 
Member Municipalities whose interest therein shall be in shares proportionate to its 
surcharge contributions, unless provided otherwise by written agreement of the Member 
Municipalities. 
 
 



West Suburban Consolidated 9-1-1 System By-Laws   Page 12     
 

ARTICLE X.     AMENDMENT TO THE BY-LAWS 
 
A. Amendment to these By-Laws may be proposed by any Member Municipality of 

the System Board. 
 
B. The proposed amendment shall be submitted to the System Board at least thirty 

(30) days prior to the meeting of the System Board at which time such proposed 
amendment is to be considered. 

 
C. A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the System Board shall be required to adopt any 

amendment to the By-Laws. 
 
D. No amendment shall be in conflict with the Agreement, the laws of the State of 

Illinois, or the applicable Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Department of 
State Police and the Illinois Commerce Commission. 

 
 

ARTICLE XI.     EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
These By-Laws become effective immediately upon approval by the 9-1-1 System 

Board.   
 
Adopted by the System Board on XXX XX, 2017. 
 
 
      
Secretary of the Board 
 
 
 
 


	03-13-17 VBOT AGENDA
	5A. 02-27-17 VBOT Minutes Draft
	5B. 02-27-17 VBOT Minutes Template Exec Session
	5C. Memo re Delegate & Alternate - Pape March 2017
	5D. Village Attorney Invoice
	5E. Memo re License Purchase - CDWG
	5F. VBOT Item - Tree and Stump Removals 2017
	5G. VBOT Item - Tree Trimming Program 2017
	5H. VBOT Memo and Ordinance - 11 Ashland (ADA Space)
	5I.  Water Easement for St. Vincent Church
	5J.1. Police Department February 2017 Monthly Report
	5J.2. Fire Department Monthly Report February  - 2017
	5J.3. PW Monthly Report - February 2017
	5J4. February 2017 Monthly Building Report
	5K. February 2017 PM Report
	5L. VA Report 03-13-17
	7A. Cook County Opt Out
	7B. Lake and Park Consulting Agreement
	7C. ETSB



